
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
 
Helene Schneider 
Mayor/Chair 
Grant House 
Mayor Pro Tempore/Vice Chair 

 
James L. Armstrong 

City Administrator/ 
Executive Director 

Bendy White 
Ordinance Committee Chair 

Stephen P. Wiley 
City Attorney/Agency Counsel 

Das Williams 
Finance Committee Chair 

 

Dale Francisco 
Frank Hotchkiss 
Michael Self 

City Hall 
735 Anacapa Street 

http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov

MAY 18, 2010 
AGENDA 

 
ORDER OF BUSINESS:  Regular meetings of the Finance Committee and the Ordinance Committee begin at 12:30 p.m.  
The regular City Council and Redevelopment Agency meetings begin at 2:00 p.m. in the Council Chamber at City Hall.   
 
REPORTS:  Copies of the reports relating to agenda items are available for review in the City Clerk's Office, at the Central 
Library, and http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov.  In accordance with state law requirements, this agenda generally contains 
only a brief general description of each item of business to be transacted or discussed at the meeting.  Should you wish 
more detailed information regarding any particular agenda item, you are encouraged to obtain a copy of the Council 
Agenda Report (a "CAR") for that item from either the Clerk's Office, the Reference Desk at the City's Main Library, or 
online at the City's website (http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov).  Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to the 
Council/Redevelopment Agency after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection in the City Clerk’s 
Office located at City Hall, 735 Anacapa Street, Santa Barbara, CA 93101, during normal business hours. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:  At the beginning of the 2:00 p.m. session of each regular Council/Redevelopment Agency meeting, 
and at the beginning of each special Council/Redevelopment Agency meeting, any member of the public may address them 
concerning any item not on the Council/Redevelopment Agency agenda.  Any person wishing to make such address should 
first complete and deliver a “Request to Speak” form prior to the time that public comment is taken up by the 
Council/Redevelopment Agency.  Should Council/Redevelopment Agency business continue into the evening session of a 
regular Council/Redevelopment Agency meeting at 6:00 p.m., the Council/Redevelopment Agency will allow any member of 
the public who did not address them during the 2:00 p.m. session to do so.  The total amount of time for public comments 
will be 15 minutes, and no individual speaker may speak for more than 1 minute.  The Council/Redevelopment Agency, 
upon majority vote, may decline to hear a speaker on the grounds that the subject matter is beyond their jurisdiction. 
 
REQUEST TO SPEAK:  A member of the public may address the Finance or Ordinance Committee or 
Council/Redevelopment Agency regarding any scheduled agenda item.  Any person wishing to make such address should 
first complete and deliver a “Request to Speak” form prior to the time that the item is taken up by the Finance or Ordinance 
Committee or Council/Redevelopment Agency. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR:  The Consent Calendar is comprised of items that will not usually require discussion by the 
Council/ Redevelopment Agency.  A Consent Calendar item is open for discussion by the Council/Redevelopment Agency 
upon request of a Council/Agency Member, City staff, or member of the public.  Items on the Consent Calendar may be 
approved by a single motion.  Should you wish to comment on an item listed on the Consent Agenda, after turning in your 
“Request to Speak” form, you should come forward to speak at the time the Council/Redevelopment Agency considers the 
Consent Calendar. 
 
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special 
assistance to gain access to, comment at, or participate in this meeting, please contact the City Administrator's Office at 
564-5305 or inquire at the City Clerk's Office on the day of the meeting.  If possible, notification at least 48 hours prior to the 
meeting will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements in most cases. 
 
TELEVISION COVERAGE:  Each regular Council meeting is broadcast live in English and Spanish on City TV Channel 18, 
and rebroadcast in English on Wednesdays and Thursdays at 7:00 p.m. and Saturdays at 9:00 a.m., and in Spanish on 
Sundays at 4:00 p.m.  Each televised Council meeting is closed captioned for the hearing impaired.  Check the City TV 
program guide at www.citytv18.com for rebroadcasts of Finance and Ordinance Committee meetings, and for any changes 
to the replay schedule. 

http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/


 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING – 2:00 P.M. 
REGULAR REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY MEETING – 2:00 P.M. 

 
 
 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 

 2:00 p.m. - City Council Meeting Begins 
 2:00 p.m. - Redevelopment Agency Meeting 
 5:00 p.m. - Recess 
 6:00 p.m. - City Council Meeting Reconvenes 
 
 
AFTERNOON SESSION 

CALL TO ORDER 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

ROLL CALL 
 

CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

CITY COUNCIL 

1. Subject:  Minutes 

Recommendation:  That Council waive the reading and approve the minutes of 
the regular meeting of April 20, 2010, and the special meeting of April 23, 2010. 
 

2. Subject:  Youth Watershed Education Program Contract With Art From 
Scrap (540.14) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the Parks and Recreation Director to 
execute a 12-month professional services contract with Art From Scrap in the 
amount of $56,299.25 in Creeks Funds for the provision of Creeks Program 
youth and community watershed education programs in Fiscal Year 2011. 

5/18/2010 Santa Barbara City Council/Redevelopment Agency Agenda Page 1 



 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 

CITY COUNCIL (CONT’D) 

3. Subject:  Used Oil Payment Program Grant - Sixteenth Cycle (630.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of 

Santa Barbara Authorizing the Waterfront Director to Submit an 
Application to the California Department of Resources Recycling and 
Recovery (CalRecycle) for Fiscal Year 2011 Used Oil Payment Program 
Grant (OPP Grant), Formerly Known as the Used Oil Block Grant - 
Sixteenth Cycle, in the Amount of $12,190; and 

B.  If the grant is awarded, accept the OPP Grant - Sixteenth Cycle, and 
increase appropriations and estimated revenues in the Waterfront Fund 
for an amount of $12,190 for Fiscal Year 2011. 

 

4. Subject:  Introduction Of Ordinance Amending Municipal Code 
Section 3.16.073 Regarding Registered Domestic Partners (800.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of 
title only, An Ordinance of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending 
Title Three of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code to Revise Section 3.16.073 of 
Chapter 3.16 Pertaining to the Employment by the City of Domestic Partnerships 
in the Same City Department or Division. 
  

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

5. Subject:  Minutes 

Recommendation:  That the Redevelopment Agency waive the reading and 
approve the minutes of the regular meeting of April 20, 2010. 
  

NOTICES 

6. The City Clerk has on Thursday, May 13, 2010, posted this agenda in the Office 
of the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside balcony of 
City Hall, and on the Internet. 

 
This concludes the Consent Calendar. 

5/18/2010 Santa Barbara City Council/Redevelopment Agency Agenda Page 2 



 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY REPORTS 

7. Subject:  Contract For Professional Services For The Police Station 
Seismic And Structural Analysis Services Project (700.08) 

Recommendation:    
A. That the City Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the 

Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving and Adopting the Findings 
Required by Health and Safety Code Section 33445.1 for Redevelopment 
Agency Funding of Capital Improvements for the Police Station 
Renovation Located Outside and Not Contiguous to the Central City 
Redevelopment Project Area and Authorizing Certain Other Actions; and 

B. That the Redevelopment Agency (RDA) Board authorize the expenditure 
of $151,246 for seismic and structural analysis of the Police Station by 
Coffman Engineers, building assessment services by Paul Poirier and 
Associates Architects, and related project management services by Public 
Works Department staff. 

 

CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

8. Subject:  Public Hearing To Acquire Property Interests At 306 West Ortega 
Street By Eminent Domain For The Ortega Street Bridge Replacement 
Project (330.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Accept the Addendum to the Certified Final Environmental Impact 

Statement/Environmental Impact Report (EIS/EIR) for the Lower Mission 
Creek Flood Control Project (State Clearing House SCH No. 1998101061, 
dated March 10, 2008), prepared by the City's Environmental Analyst for 
the Ortega Street Bridge (Bridge) Replacement Project; and 

B. Adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of Necessity by the Council of 
the City of Santa Barbara for the Real Property at 306 West Ortega Street, 
Adjacent Access Easement, and Adjacent Parking Easement, all Located 
on Portions of Santa Barbara County Assessor's Parcel Number 
037-073-011. 

 

5/18/2010 Santa Barbara City Council/Redevelopment Agency Agenda Page 3 



 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

9. Subject:  Appeal Of Single Family Design Board Denial Of Retaining Walls 
For 1464 La Cima Road (640.07) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Grant the appeal of Scott McCosker with direction on a modified design 

and grant the project preliminary approval, making the findings contained 
in the staff report; and  

B. Refer the project back to the Single Family Design Board Consent 
Calendar for final approval consistent with Council’s direction on a 
modified design. 

 

COUNCIL AND STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 

COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT REPORTS 

RECESS 
EVENING SESSION 

EVENING SESSION 
 

RECONVENE 

ROLL CALL 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

10. Subject:  Introduction Of Medical Marijuana Storefront Collective 
Dispensary Ordinance (520.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of 
title only, An Ordinance of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending the 
Municipal Code by Revising Chapter 28.80 and Establishing Revised 
Regulations and Procedures for Medical Marijuana Storefront Collective 
Dispensaries. 
  

ADJOURNMENT 

5/18/2010 Santa Barbara City Council/Redevelopment Agency Agenda Page 4 



 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
April 20, 2010 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, 735 ANACAPA STREET 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Helene Schneider called the joint meeting of the Council and Redevelopment 
Agency to order at 2:03 p.m.  (The Finance and Ordinance Committees met at 12:30 
p.m.)  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Mayor Schneider. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Councilmembers present:  Dale Francisco, Frank Hotchkiss, Grant House, Michael Self, 
Bendy White, Das Williams, Mayor Schneider. 
Councilmembers absent:  None. 
Staff present:  City Administrator James L. Armstrong, City Attorney Stephen P. Wiley, 
City Clerk Services Manager Cynthia M. Rodriguez. 
 
CEREMONIAL ITEMS  
 
1.  Subject:  Proclamation Declaring April 20, 2010, As The 40th Anniversary Of 
 UCSB Environmental Studies Program (120.04)   
 

Action:  Proclamation presented to Environmental Studies Program Chair and 
Professor Joshua Schimel and Environmental Affairs Board Co-Chair Nick Allen.   

 
PUBLIC COMMENT  
 
Speakers:  Kenneth Loch, Kate Smith, Gert Walter, Jaycee Hunter.  
 

4/20/2010 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 1 



CONSENT CALENDAR (Item Nos. 2 - 8 and 10 - 12)  
 
The titles of the resolutions and ordinances related to the Consent Calendar were read.  
 
Motion:   
 Councilmembers House/Hotchkiss to approve the Consent Calendar as 
 recommended.   
Vote:  
 Unanimous roll call vote.  
 
2.  Subject:  Minutes   
 

Recommendation: That Council waive the reading and approve the minutes of 
the adjourned regular meeting of March 22, and the regular meetings of March 
23, March 30, and April 6, 2010 (cancelled).   

 
 Action:  Approved the recommendation.   
 
3.  Subject:  State Revolving Fund Project Funding For The El Estero Wastewater 
 Treatment Plant (540.13)   
 

Recommendation: That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Authorizing the Wastewater Fund as the 
Dedicated Source of Revenue for Repayment of the Clean Water State 
Revolving Fund (CWSRF) Loan.   
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation; Resolution No. 10-019 (April 20, 2010, 
report from the Public Works Director; proposed resolution).   

 
4.  Subject:  Adoption Of Appeal Findings Resolution For 3714-3744 State Street - 
 Sandman Inn Redevelopment Project (640.07)   
 

Recommendation: That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Denying the Appeal and Upholding the 
Decision of the City Planning Commission to Certify the Final Environmental 
Impact Report for the Sandman Inn Redevelopment Project, and to Approve the 
Application of Brent Daniels, L&P Consultants, Agent for Kellogg Associates, for 
the Tentative Subdivision Map, a Development Plan Approval, and Certain Lot 
Area Modifications and Line Adjustments in Connection with the Redevelopment 
Project Proposed for 3714-3744 State Street Buffer (MST2007-00591) and 
Known as the "Sandman Inn Redevelopment Project."   

 
Action:  Approved the recommendation; Resolution No. 10-020 (April 20, 2010, 
report from the City Attorney; proposed resolution).   

 

4/20/2010 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 2 



5.  Subject:  Introduction Of Ordinance For Lease Agreement With Doug Chessmore 
 (330.04)   
 

Recommendation: That Council approve a lease agreement with Doug 
Chessmore, doing business as Ocean Aire Electronics, and introduce and 
subsequently adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of the Council of the 
City of Santa Barbara Approving a Lease Agreement with Doug Chessmore, 
Doing Business As Ocean Aire Electronics, Effective May 27, 2010, for Lease of 
the Premises Located at 125 Harbor Way #7.   

 
Action:  Approved the recommendation (April 20, 2010, report from the 
Waterfront Director; proposed ordinance).   

 
6.  Subject:  Introduction Of Ordinance For Extension And Amendment Of 
 Supervisors’ Memorandum Of Understanding (440.02)   
 

Recommendation: That Council introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of 
title only, An Ordinance of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending 
Ordinance No. 5484, the 2009-2011 Memorandum of Understanding Between 
the City of Santa Barbara and the Santa Barbara City Supervisory Employees' 
Bargaining Unit (Supervisors' Unit).   

 
Action:  Approved the recommendation (April 20, 2010, report from the Assistant 
City Administrator; proposed ordinance).   

 
7.  Subject:  Approval Of An Emergency Purchase Order For The Modoc Road 
 Storm Drain Repair Project (530.04)   
 

Recommendation: That Council retroactively approve the issuance of an 
emergency Purchase Order to Tierra Contracting, Inc. (Tierra), in the amount of 
$87,718 for construction of the Modoc Road Storm Drain Repair, pursuant to 
Municipal Code Section 4.52.080.   

 
Action:  Approved the recommendation (April 20, 2010, report from the Public 
Works Director).   

 

4/20/2010 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 3 



8.  Subject:  Purchase Order Contract For The Gibraltar Dam Concrete Maintenance 
 Project (540.09)   
 

Recommendation: That Council waive formal bid procedures as authorized by 
Municipal Code Section 4.52.070(k) and authorize the General Services 
Manager to issue a Purchase Order to Santa Barbara Surfacing for the Gibraltar 
Dam Concrete Maintenance Project (Project) in the amount of $87,290.31, and 
authorize the General Services Manager to approve expenditures of up to 
$17,450 for extra services that may result from necessary changes in the scope 
of work.   

 
Action:  Approved the recommendation (April 20, 2010, report from the Public 
Works Director).   

 
Item No. 9 appears in the Redevelopment Agency minutes. 
 
NOTICES  
 
10.  The City Clerk has on Thursday, April 15, 2010, posted this agenda in the Office 

of the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside balcony of 
City Hall, and on the Internet.   

 
11.  The Recommended Fiscal Year 2011 Operating and Capital Budget was filed 
 with the City Clerk’s Office on April 20, 2010.   
 
12.  Received a letter of resignation from Creeks Advisory Committee Member Daniel 
 Wilson; the vacancy will be part of the current City Advisory Groups recruitment.   
 
            This concluded the Consent Calendar.  
 
REPORT FROM THE FINANCE COMMITTEE  
 
Finance Committee Chair Das Williams reported that the Committee met to discuss the 
Fiscal Year 2011 recommended budget and related matters that the Committee will be 
reviewing every Tuesday afternoon through the month of May in the David Gebhard 
Public Meeting Room.  
 
REPORT FROM THE ORDINANCE COMMITTEE  
 
Ordinance Committee Chair Bendy White reported that the Committee met today to 
discuss a change concerning the number of members on the Architectural Board of 
Review.  He stated the voters approved a change to the membership from nine to seven 
members, but in order to maintain the existing Board for one to two years to complete 
the transition, an amendment was proposed, which will be presented to the Council for 
approval in approximately one month.  
 

4/20/2010 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 4 



CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS  
 
FINANCE DEPARTMENT  
 
13.  Subject:  Fiscal Year 2011 Recommended Operating And Capital Budget 
 (230.05)    
 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A.    Receive the Fiscal Year 2011 Recommended Operating and Capital 
 Budget;  
B.    Hear a report from staff in connection with the filing of the Fiscal Year 
 2011 Recommended Budget; and 
C.    Approve the proposed Schedule of Council Budget Review Meetings for 
 the presentation of the Fiscal Year 2011 Recommended Budget. 

  
 Documents: 
 - April 20, 2010, report from the Interim Finance Director. 
 - April 20, 2010, PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by staff. 
 
 Speakers: 
  Staff:  City Administrator James Armstrong, Interim Finance Director  
  Robert Samario. 
 
 Motion:   
  Councilmembers House/Francisco to approve the recommendations. 
 Vote:  
  Unanimous voice vote.  
 
RECESS   
 
3:27 p.m. - 3:38 p.m.  City Administrator Armstrong was absent when the Council 
reconvened.  Assistant City Administrator Paul Casey was present. 
 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY REPORTS  
 
14.  Subject:  Future Of The Redevelopment Agency (620.01)    
 

Recommendation:    That Council and the Redevelopment Agency Board receive 
a report on the future of the Redevelopment Agency. 

  
 Documents: 
 - April 20, 2010, report from the Agency Deputy Director. 
 - April 20, 2010, PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by staff. 
 
                   (Cont’d)

4/20/2010 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 5 



14. (Cont’d) 
 
 Speakers: 
  Staff:  Housing and Redevelopment Manager Brian Bosse, Assistant City  
  Attorney Sarah Knecht.  
 
 By consensus, the Council and Agency Board received the report.   
 
CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS (CONT’D)  
 
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT  
 
15.  Subject:  Cachuma Conservation Release Board Draft Budget (540.03)   
 

Recommendation: That Council review the draft Fiscal Year 2011 budget for the 
Cachuma Conservation Release Board (CCRB).   

 
 Documents: 
 - April 20, 2010, report from the Public Works Director. 
 - April 20, 2010, PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by staff. 
 
 Speakers: 
            Staff:  Water Resources Manager Rebecca Bjork.  
 
 By consensus, the Council reviewed the budget.   
 
RECESS  
 
Mayor Schneider recessed the meeting at 4:55 p.m. in order for the Council to 
reconvene in closed session for Agenda Item Nos. 16 and 17, and stated that no 
reportable action is anticipated.  City Administrator Armstrong was present when the 
Council reconvened in closed session.  Assistant City Administrator Casey was absent.  
 

4/20/2010 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 6 



CLOSED SESSIONS  
 
17.  Subject:  Conference With Real Property Negotiator (330.03)   
 

Recommendation: That Council hold a closed session to consider instructions to 
its negotiators regarding the possible lease of property owned by the City of 
Santa Barbara, commonly described as a ten-acre parcel of real property located 
at the Santa Barbara Airport airfield, bounded by Taxiway A and Taxiway M. 
Instructions to negotiators will direct staff regarding the price and terms of 
payment of a possible lease of the City-owned property with Tam Hunt. 
Negotiations are held pursuant to the authority of Section 54956.8 of the 
Government Code. City Negotiators are: Karen Ramsdell, Airport Director; Paul 
Casey, Assistant City Administrator/Community Development Director; and 
Sarah Knecht, Assistant City Attorney. Negotiator for the potential lessee is Tam 
Hunt. Under negotiation: Price and terms of payment of a possible ground lease. 
Scheduling: Duration, 20 minutes; anytime Report: None anticipated   

 
 Documents: 
            April 20, 2010, report from the Airport Director and City Attorney. 
 
 Time: 
            4:55 p.m. - 5:35 p.m. 
 
 No report made.  
 
 Councilmember Williams left the meeting at 5:35 p.m.  
 
16.  Subject:  Conference With Legal Counsel - Pending Litigation (160.03)   
 

Recommendation: That Council hold a closed session to consider pending 
litigation pursuant to subsection (a) of section 54956.9 of the Government Code 
and take appropriate action as needed. The pending litigation is Cynthia Ricci v. 
Isadora Gonzalez; City of Santa Barbara, SBSC Case Number 1337050. 
Scheduling: Duration, 15 minutes; anytime Report: None anticipated   

 
 Documents: 
            April 20, 2010, report from the City Attorney. 
 
 Time: 
            5:36 p.m. - 5:45 p.m. 
 
 No report made.   
 

4/20/2010 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 7 



ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Schneider adjourned the meeting at 5:45 p.m. 
 
 
SANTA BARBARA CITY COUNCIL SANTA BARBARA 
  CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 
 
 
 
  ATTEST:       
HELENE SCHNEIDER  CYNTHIA M. RODRIGUEZ, CMC 
MAYOR  CITY CLERK SERVICES MANAGER 
 

4/20/2010 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 8 



 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

 
 

SPECIAL MEETING 
April 23, 2010 

DAVID GEBHARD PUBLIC MEETING ROOM 
630 GARDEN STREET 

 
 
JOINT CITY COUNCIL AND SANTA BARBARA BOARD OF EDUCATION MEETING 
(150.05) 
 
1. Call to Order and Roll Call   
 

Mayor Helene Schneider called the joint meeting of the Council and the Board of 
Education to order at 1:34 p.m.  
 
Councilmembers present:  Dale Francisco, Frank Hotchkiss, Michael Self, Bendy 
White, Das Williams, Mayor Schneider.  
Councilmembers absent:  Grant House. 
Staff present:  City Administrator James L. Armstrong, Assistant City Attorney 
Sarah Knecht, Deputy City Clerk Susan Tschech.  
 
Board Members present:  Annette Cordero, Dr. Robert Noel, Kate Parker, 
President H. Edward Heron. 
Board Members absent:  Susan Deacon. 
Staff present:  Superintendent J. Brian Sarvis.  

 
2. Pledge of Allegiance   
 

Mayor Schneider.  
 
3. Spanish Translation/Traduccion en Espanol and Headsets for Hearing 

Impaired   
 

Assistant City Administrator Marcelo Lόpez stated he was available for Spanish 
translation.  

 
Councilmember House entered the meeting at 1:45 p.m. 
 

4/23/2010 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 1 



4. Public Comments   
 

Speakers:  Kenneth Loch, Cheri Rae, Karolyn Renard, Janet Rowse, Kate Smith.   
 
5. Statement of Purpose for Joint Meeting   
 

Mayor Schneider and Board President Heron stated that this semiannual meeting 
presents an opportunity for the two agencies to engage in a public forum and to 
discuss mutual interests.   

 
Agenda Items 6 - 10   
 
Mayor Schneider stated that Agenda Item Nos. 6 - 10 have written reports and asked if 
anyone had questions regarding these items.  Questions were asked regarding Item 
Nos. 7 and 9. 
 
6. Report on Joint City/School District Programs   
 

Documents: 
April 23, 2010, report prepared by Sarah Hanna, City Recreation 
Programs Manager, and David Hetyonk, School Districts’ Director of 
Facilities and Operations, on behalf of the Joint Use Committee.   

 
7. Report on Renewal of the Agreement for Joint Use, Programming, 

Maintenance, and Development   
 

Documents: 
April 23, 2010, report prepared by Sarah Hanna, City Recreation 
Programs Manager, and David Hetyonk, School Districts’ Director of 
Facilities and Operations. 

 
Speakers: 

City of Santa Barbara Staff:  Recreation Programs Manager Sarah Hanna.   
 
8. Report on Completion of Measure V 2000 Bond Projects   
 

Documents: 
Report entitled "Road to Renovation," prepared by Santa Barbara School 
Districts Office of Administrative Services and Communications.  

 
9. Report on the Status of Efforts to Acquire the National Guard Armory and 

the Fremont Hall Army Reserve Center   
 

Documents: 
April 23, 2010, report prepared by Assistant City Administrator Paul 
Casey. 
 

(Cont’d)

4/23/2010 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 2 



9. (Cont’d) 
 

Speakers: 
City of Santa Barbara Staff:  Parks and Recreation Director Nancy Rapp.  

 
10. Report on School Districts and City Collaboration on Foodscraps and 

Recycling Programs   
 

Documents: 
April 23, 2010, report prepared by Stephen MacIntosh, City Environmental 
Services Supervisor, and Brian Tanguay, School Districts Purchasing 
Coordinator.   

 
11. Presentation on City and School Districts Budget Planning for the 

Upcoming Fiscal Year   
 

Documents: 
 - PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by City Staff. 
 - Petitions regarding the funding of school crossing guards. 
 
Speakers: 
 - City of Santa Barbara Staff:  Interim Finance Director Robert Samario. 
 - Santa Barbara School Districts Staff:  Deputy Superintendent Eric Smith. 
 - Members of the Public:  Brent Millhollen, Cricket Wood, Damien Barnett, 

Virginia Clarke, Eva Inbar, Michael Vail, Beatriz Flores, Lisa Fell, Karolyn 
Renard, Kate Smith, Tisha Levy. 

 
Discussion: 

City and School Districts Staff discussed in some detail the structure of 
each agency's budget and the challenges faced by both agencies in 
making adjustments to allow for significant revenue shortfalls.  Public 
comment focused on the proposed elimination of funding for school 
crossing guards.  Council and Board members made comments, and their 
questions were answered.  

 
12. Presentation on the Fiscal Implications of Becoming a Basic Aid School 

District   
 

Speakers: 
 - Santa Barbara School Districts Staff:  Deputy Superintendent Eric Smith. 
 - Public Economics, Inc.:  Dante Gumicio. 
 - Members of the Public:  Kate Smith. 
 

(Cont’d) 

4/23/2010 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 3 



12. (Cont’d) 
 

Discussion: 
Deputy Superintendent Smith defined the concepts of "revenue limit" and 
"basic aid" and explained how school districts are funded according to 
their status as one or the other type.  He also described State action to 
appropriate a portion of basic aid funding.  Mr. Gumicio discussed how 
redevelopment affects the basic aid status of school districts.   

 
 
13. Update on the South Coast Gang Task Force Activity   
 

Speakers: 
 - City of Santa Barbara Staff:  Assistant City Administrator Marcelo Lόpez. 
 - Santa Barbara School Districts Staff:  Superintendent J. Brian Sarvis. 
 - Members of the Public:  Kate Smith, Karolyn Renard.  
 
Discussion: 

Assistant City Administrator Lόpez summarized the accomplishments of 
the Task Force convened in 2008, including a summer program, the 
caseworker model which produces plans specific to individual clients, the 
securing of a Cal-GRIP grant, and the establishment of many 
partnerships.  He concluded by listing the major elements of the long-term 
plan to address the issue of gang violence.   

 
Board of Education Member Cordero left the meeting at 3:59 p.m., and Councilmember 
Self left the meeting at 4:01 p.m.  
 
14. Update on the Medical Marijuana Dispensary Ordinance   
 

Documents: 
  September 8, 2009, letter from the Santa Barbara School Districts. 
 
Speakers: 
 - City of Santa Barbara Staff:  Assistant City Administrator Paul Casey. 
 - Members of the Public:  Shereen Khatapoush, Council on Alcoholism and 

Drug Abuse; Mari Mender; Nancy Harter. 
 

Councilmember White left the meeting at 4:09 p.m. 
 
Discussion: 

Assistant City Administrator Casey answered questions from Board of 
Education Members regarding the draft ordinance being considered by the 
City Council’s Ordinance Committee to revise the regulations for medical 
marijuana dispensaries.   

 

4/23/2010 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 4 



15. Additional Matters for Placement on a Future Agenda   
 

Speakers: 
Members of the Public:  Karolyn Renard. 

 
Discussion: 

Board of Education Member Parker requested information regarding the 
school resource officer position at Santa Barbara High School, and she 
also suggested that the School Board and City Council collaborate on 
graffiti education.  Councilmember Williams asked that a presentation be 
made regarding the School Districts’ Fiscal Crisis & Management 
Assistance Team Report.   

 
The Board of Education meeting was adjourned at 4:17 p.m. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Schneider adjourned the City Council meeting at 4:17 p.m. 
 
 
SANTA BARBARA CITY COUNCIL SANTA BARBARA 
  CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 
 
 
 
  ATTEST:       
HELENE SCHNEIDER  SUSAN TSCHECH, CMC 
MAYOR  DEPUTY CITY CLERK 
 

4/23/2010 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 5 



Agenda Item No._____________ 

File Code No.  540.14 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: May 18, 2010  
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Creeks Division, Parks and Recreation Department 
 
SUBJECT: Youth Watershed Education Program Contract With Art From Scrap 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That Council authorize the Parks and Recreation Director to execute a 12-month 
professional services contract with Art From Scrap in the amount of $56,299.25 in 
Creeks Funds for the provision of Creeks Program youth and community watershed 
education programs in Fiscal Year 2011. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Creeks Restoration and Water Quality Improvement Division (Creeks Division) 
recommends that the City contract with Art From Scrap to provide youth watershed 
education programs and support the continuation of community events and 
programming at the South Coast Watershed Resource Center. Youth education is a key 
component of the Creeks Division’s Public Education Plan and the City’s Storm Water 
Management Program (SWMP), along with ongoing efforts to reduce urban runoff 
pollution and improve ocean water quality at the beach. By providing clear and 
engaging activities for youth and the community regarding the importance of clean 
water and the causes of pollution, these programs help people to develop an 
appreciation of creek and ocean water quality and adopt appropriate behaviors to 
protect and improve it. 
 
Art From Scrap is a non-profit organization with a primary focus on environmental 
education for youth. Since 2002, the Creeks Division has implemented an education 
program for elementary age children, as well as community outreach programming 
based out of the Watershed Resource Center. The proposed contract with Art From 
Scrap would continue the existing and successful education partnership to meet the 
SWMP goal to reach 3,000 students annually.  
 



Council Agenda Report 
Youth Watershed Education Program Contract With Art From Scrap 
May 18, 2010 
Page 2 

 

Scope of Work 
Under the proposed contract, Art From Scrap will provide four water quality education 
programs for schoolchildren within the City of Santa Barbara. These programs include:  
1) a three-part Creek Kids series that is targeted to fourth through sixth grade students; 
2) field trips to the Watershed Resource Center at Arroyo Burro Beach for kindergarten 
through sixth grade; 3) in-class creek lessons focusing on the watershed model; and 4) 
hands-on water quality education activities at community and school events, including 
science nights. The Art From Scrap programs are correlated to state standards and 
designed to complement other Creeks Division youth education programs. Additionally, 
the proposed contract includes a partnership with Santa Barbara County to fund a part-
time (five hours/week) staff person to manage and administer the Watershed Resource 
Center. 
 
During Fiscal Year 2011, it is anticipated that Art From Scrap will conduct 160 
presentations over a 12-month period, reaching at least 3,000 schoolchildren. Art From 
Scrap will also provide staffing and support to multiple community programs hosted at 
the Watershed Resource Center. New themes and special projects are developed each 
year to maintain an evolving program with fresh elements for teachers and students. 
 
Regional Integration 
In addition to providing youth watershed education programs within the City, Art From 
Scrap is under contract with the County of Santa Barbara to provide similar programs to 
schoolchildren in other areas in the County. The Creeks Division recommends that the 
City and County continue to work with Art From Scrap to provide similar and consistent 
watershed education programs. 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
The total cost of the contract with Art From Scrap is $56,299.25. Funds for this contract 
are included in the proposed Fiscal Year 2011 Creeks Fund Operating Budget. 
 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT:   
 
Reducing the impact of polluted urban runoff from developed areas is critical for the 
protection of water quality in the City. An important goal of the Creeks Division public 
outreach effort is to educate residents about specific behaviors and habits that can 
improve water quality. Providing educational activities for youth and the community 
helps participants develop an appreciation of local creek and ocean water quality and 
adopt appropriate behaviors to protect and improve it. 
 
PREPARED BY: Cameron Benson, Creeks Restoration/Clean Water Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Nancy Rapp, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



Agenda Item No._____________ 

File Code No.  630.01 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 

AGENDA DATE: May 18, 2010 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Facilities Division, Waterfront Department 
 
SUBJECT: Used Oil Payment Program Grant – Sixteenth Cycle 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council:   
 
A.  Adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of Santa 

Barbara Authorizing the Waterfront Director to Submit an Application to the 
California Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery (CalRecycle) for 
Fiscal Year 2011 Used Oil Payment Program Grant (OPP Grant), Formerly 
Known as the Used Oil Block Grant – Sixteenth Cycle, in the Amount of $12,190; 
and 

B.  If the grant is awarded, accept the OPP Grant – Sixteenth Cycle, and increase 
appropriations and estimated revenues in the Waterfront Fund for an amount of 
$12,190 for Fiscal Year 2011. 

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
CalRecycle provides annual noncompetitive Used Oil Grants to local governments for 
establishing and enhancing community used oil collection programs. These funds must 
be directed toward used motor oil collection and/or related educational programs. Grant 
awards are based on the population size of each jurisdiction.  The City was awarded a 
grant in the amount of $12,190 in Fiscal Year 2010, with the funds dedicated to educate 
the public about proper management of used motor oil.  This same level of funding is 
expected for Fiscal Year 2011. 
 
Over the past several fiscal years, the Environmental Services Division has 
administered the OPP Grant program for the City. Beginning with Fiscal Year 2011, the 
Waterfront Department will assume responsibility for administering and expending all 
OPP Grant funding. Waterfront staff agreed to this arrangement in large part due to the 
need for these grant monies to support the Waterfront’s Clean Marina Program. 
 
Funds from this Sixteenth Cycle will be used to: 
 

• Distribute oil-absorbent pads free to the boating community, keeping bilges free 
of surface oil and subsequently keeping bilge pumps from creating a sheen on 
the harbor; 



Council Agenda Report 
Used Oil Payment Program Grant – Sixteenth Cycle  
May 18, 2010 
Page 2 

 

• Conduct public education and outreach, including brochures, pamphlets, 
signage, stenciling, regarding the proper disposal of used motor oil; 

 
• Set-up and conduct temporary Hazardous Household Waste collection events at 

the Harbor, where used oil will be accepted; 
 

• Purchase and distribute free used-oil collection materials (funnels, rags, etc.);  
 

• Make facility improvements that help maintain compliance with the requirements 
of the Waterfront Department's Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan; and 

 
• Assist with costs for the disposal of used oil from a bilge-water pumpout station 

and used-oil disposal stations at Marina 2, Marina 4 and the City Pier. 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
With approval of the grant, the project will be fully funded.  The term of the grant will 
begin on July 1, 2010, and end on June 30, 2011. The annual fund allocation for the 
coming Fiscal Year is $12,190. 
 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT: 
 
The program is designed to prevent discharges of used motor oil into the harbor by 
providing free and easily accessible resources for its safe disposal. 
 
PREPARED BY:  Karl Treiberg, Waterfront Facilities Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY:  John Bridley, Waterfront Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator’s Office 
 



RESOLUTION NO. _________ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA AUTHORIZING THE WATERFRONT 
DIRECTOR TO SUBMIT AN APPLICATION TO THE 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF RESOURCES 
RECYCLING AND RECOVERY (CALRECYCLE) FOR 
FISCAL YEAR 2011 USED OIL PAYMENT PROGRAM 
GRANT (OPP GRANT), FORMERLY KNOWN AS THE 
USED OIL BLOCK GRANT - SIXTEENTH CYCLE, IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $12,190 

 
 

WHEREAS, Public Resources Code Sections 48690 et seq. authorize the Department 
of Resources Recycling and Recovery (CalRecycle), formerly known as the California 
Integrated Waste Management Board, to make payments to qualifying jurisdictions for 
implementation of their used oil programs as required by PRC § 48690 et seq.;  
 
WHEREAS, in furtherance of this authority CalRecycle is required to establish 
procedures governing the administration of the Used Oil Payment Program; and 
 
WHEREAS, CalRecycle’s procedures for administering the Used Oil Payment Program 
require, among other things, an applicant’s governing body to declare by resolution 
certain authorizations related to the administration of the Used Oil Payment Program. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA 
BARBARA AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1. Authorizes the submittal of a Used Oil Payment Program application to 
CalRecycle; and 
 
SECTION 2.  The Waterfront Director or his designee, is hereby authorized and 
empowered to execute in the name of the City of Santa Barbara all documents, 
including but not limited to, applications, agreements, annual reports including 
expenditure reports and amendments necessary to secure said payments to support 
our Used Oil Collection Program; and 
 
SECTION 3.  This authorization is effective for five (5) years from the date of adoption 
of this resolution through June 30, 2015. 
 
 
 

 



Agenda Item No._____________ 

File Code No.  800.05 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: May 18, 2010 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Human Resources, Administrative Services 
 
SUBJECT: Introduction Of Ordinance Amending Municipal Code Section 
 3.16.073 Regarding Registered Domestic Partners 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending Title Three of the Santa Barbara 
Municipal Code to Revise Section 3.16.073 of Chapter 3.16 Pertaining to the Employment 
by the City of Domestic Partnerships in the Same City Department or Division. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Background 
Currently the Municipal Code provides that a City employee cannot be placed under the 
direct supervision of that employee’s spouse when both spouses work within the same 
City department, division, or facility.  In addition, when this situation occurs upon the 
marriage of two City employees, a review is conducted by the affected department and 
Human Resources for any potential job related conflicts relative to supervision, safety, 
security, and morale.  If, upon the conclusion of a review, a potential conflict concern 
exist then employment decisions, such as requiring one of the employees to transfer to 
different City department or division, are made accordingly.  These regulations were first 
enacted in 1989 to reflect the requirements of the state Fair Employment and Housing 
Act and the Department of Fair Employment and Housing non-discrimination 
regulations; however, they have not been updated since that time. 
  
This Municipal Code language should be revised to now include state and City 
registered domestic partners since potential employment-related conflicts of interest, as 
described above, may exist not only for spouses and close relatives, but also for 
registered domestic partners who work in close proximity in the same City department 
or division.  This proposed Title 3 Code update also includes an express definition of a 
registered domestic partner and provides that that term “marriage’ as used in City 
Charter Section 710 (Nepotism) would be expanded to include registered domestic 
partner relationships. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Introduction Of Ordinance Amending Municipal Code Section 3.16.073 Regarding 
Registered Domestic Partners 
May 18, 2010 
Page 2 

 

 
Ordinance Committee Review 
 
On April 27, 2010, the Ordinance Committee considered the proposed amendment and 
voted 2/0 to forward to Council for introduction and adoption.  No public comments were 
received regarding the proposed amendment.   
 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Barbara Barker, Human Resources Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Marcelo Lopez, Assistant City Administrator 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 
 



 1

Council Introduction Draft 
SHOWING CHANGES FROM CURRENT 

May 18, 2010 
NEW LANGUAGE IN UNDERLINING 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ____ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
AMENDING TITLE THREE OF THE 
SANTA BARBARA MUNICIPAL CODE TO 
REVISE SECTION 3.16.073 OF 
CHAPTER 3.16 PERTAINING TO THE 
EMPLOYMENT BY THE CITY OF 
DOMESTIC PARTNERSHIPS IN THE 
SAME CITY DEPARTMENT OR 
DIVISION.  

 
 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA DOES 
ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

 
SECTION ONE: Chapter 3.16 of Title Three of the Santa 
Barbara Municipal Code is hereby amended by revising 
Section 3.16.073 to read as follows: 
 
Section 3.16.073 Employee Selection. 
 
 A. EMPLOYMENT OF SPOUSE, REGISTERED DOMESTIC 
PARTNER, AND RELATIVES.  An employment decision shall not 
be based on whether an individual has a spouse, registered 
domestic partner, or relative presently employed by the 
City except in accordance with City Charter Section 710 and 
the following criteria: 
 

1. For business reasons of supervision, safety, 
security, or morale, the City Administrator, after 
consulting with the Personnel Officer and the 
department head, may refuse to place a spouse, 
registered domestic partner, or relative under the 
direct supervision of the other spouse, registered 
domestic partner, or a relative. 

 
2. For business reasons of supervision, safety, 
security or morale, the City Administrator, after 
consulting with the Personnel Officer and the 
department head, may refuse to place both spouses, 
both registered domestic partners,  or the (or two 
relatives) in the same department, division or 
facility if the work involves potential conflicts of 



 2

interest or other hazards greater for married couples, 
registered domestic partners,  (or relatives) than for 
other persons. 

 
 B.  ACCOMMODATIONS FOR CITY EMPLOYEES WHO MARRY OR WHO 
REGISTER AS DOMESTIC PARTNERS.  If two (2) City employees 
marry or register as domestic partners, the City 
Administrator shall make reasonable efforts to assign job 
duties so as to minimize problems of supervision, safety, 
security, or morale.  If the City Administrator is unable 
to make an acceptable accommodation which sufficiently 
minimizes the problems of supervision, safety, security or 
morale, it may require the two City employees who have 
married or who have registered as domestic partners to 
decide which one of the spouses them will resign from City 
employment within 60 days of being notified of the City 
Administrator's inability to make a reasonable 
accommodation.   
 

C. Registered Domestic Partners – Defined. For the purposes 
of this section, a “registered domestic partner” shall 
refer to domestic partners who have registered in any of 
the following ways: 
 

1. with the Santa Barbara City Clerk’s Office pursuant 
to Chapter 9.135 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code; 

 
2. with the state of California Secretary of State 
office as the term is defined in state Family Code 
section 297; or  

 
3. with another municipal, county, or state domestic 
partner registry authorized and maintained by a 
governmental entity within the United States.   

 
D. Charter Section 710 and Nepotism. For the purposes of 
City Charter Section 710, use of the term “marriage” shall 
include those persons who are registered domestic partners 
as defined and used in this section 3.16.073.   
 
 
 
 
Swiley/ord/domestic partner-amend.intro 
May 18, 2010 



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY MINUTES 
 

Regular Meeting 
April 20, 2010 

Council Chamber, 735 Anacapa Street 
 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
Chair Helene Schneider called the joint meeting of the Agency and the City Council to 
order at 2:03 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Agency members present:  Dale Francisco, Frank Hotchkiss, Grant House, Michael 
Self, Bendy White, Das Williams, Chair Schneider. 
Agency members absent:  None. 
Staff present:  Executive Director/Secretary James L. Armstrong, Agency Counsel 
Stephen P. Wiley, Deputy Director Paul Casey, Housing and Redevelopment Manager 
Brian Bosse, City Clerk Services Manager Cynthia M. Rodriguez. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
No one wished to speak. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR (Item No. 1) 
 
Motion:   
 Agency/Council Members House/Hotchkiss to approve the Consent Calendar as 
 recommended.   
Vote:  
 Unanimous roll call vote.  
 
1.  Subject:  Minutes  (9) 
 

Recommendation: That the Redevelopment Agency waive the reading and 
approve the minutes of the special meeting of March 30, 2010.   

 
Action:  Approved the recommendation.   

 

4/20/2010 Santa Barbara Redevelopment Agency Minutes Page 1 



REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY REPORTS  
 
2.  Subject:  Future Of The Redevelopment Agency (620.01/14)    
 

Recommendation:    That Council and the Redevelopment Agency Board receive 
a report on the future of the Redevelopment Agency. 

  
 Documents: 
 - April 20, 2010, report from the Deputy Director. 
 - April 20, 2010, PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by staff. 
 
 Speakers: 
  Staff:  Housing and Redevelopment Manager Brian Bosse, Assistant City  
  Attorney Sarah Knecht.  
 
 By consensus, the Board and Council received the report.   
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Chair Schneider adjourned the meeting at 5:45 p.m. 
 
 
SANTA BARBARA SANTA BARBARA 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY CITY CLERK’S OFFICE 
 
 
 
              
HELENE SCHNEIDER CYNTHIA M. RODRIGUEZ, CMC 
CHAIR CITY CLERK SERVICES MANAGER 
 

4/20/2010 Santa Barbara Redevelopment Agency Minutes Page 2 



Agenda Item No._____________ 

File Code No.  700.08 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 JOINT COUNCIL AND REDEVELOPMENT  
 AGENCY AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE:  May 18, 2010 
 
TO:    Mayor and Councilmembers 
    Chairperson and Boardmembers 
  
FROM:   Engineering Division, Public Works Department 

Housing and Redevelopment Division, Community Development   
Department 
Administration Division, Police Department 
 

SUBJECT:  Contract For Professional Services For The Police Station Seismic 
And Structural Analysis Services Project 

 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
A. That the City Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council 

of the City of Santa Barbara Approving and Adopting the Findings Required by 
Health and Safety Code Section 33445.1 for Redevelopment Agency Funding of 
Capital Improvements for the Police Station Renovation Located Outside and Not 
Contiguous to the Central City Redevelopment Project Area and Authorizing 
Certain Other Actions; and 

B. That the Redevelopment Agency (RDA) Board authorize the expenditure of 
$151,246 for seismic and structural analysis of the Police Station by Coffman 
Engineers, building assessment services by Paul Poirier and Associates 
Architects, and related project management services by Public Works 
Department staff. 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
Over the past two years, staff has been working on an evolving project that began as 
the Police Station Men’s Locker Room Upgrade Project.  During the course of a 
preliminary structural review, questions arose regarding the need to perform an in-depth 
modeling of the structure to determine deficiencies, seismic retrofit requirements, and 
their associated costs.  Staff conducted a Request for Proposal and found that Coffman 
most closely met the City’s requirements to perform the analysis.  Poirier was chosen to 
provide a building assessment to summarize the condition of key elements of the 
building. 
 
 



Joint Council And Redevelopment Agency Agenda Report 
Contract For Professional Services For The Police Station Seismic And Structural Analysis 
Services Project 
May 18, 2010 
Page 2 

 

 

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Police Station, constructed in 1959, is a concrete and steel structure that operates 
as an essential facility for the City of Santa Barbara.  Currently, this City-owned facility 
houses approximately 214 police officers and administrative staff, and is in full operation 
24 hours per day, seven days per week.  Not only does this building serve as the main 
administrative office for police services, it also includes a jail and shooting range, 
chemical and Special Weapons and Tactics (SWAT) equipment, criminal records, crime 
scene evidence, the Police and Fire Combined Communications Center that handles 
911 calls and all radio communication.  In case of a disaster, the building also serves as 
the City’s backup Emergency Operations Center. 
 
The Police Station contains the original Heating, Ventilation, and Air Conditioning 
(HVAC), electrical, and plumbing equipment that was installed in the 1950’s. 
Improvements to the Police Station have been limited over the years, due mainly to the 
cost and difficulty of working on a building that must remain in operation 24 hours per 
day, 7 days per week, and because it contains sensitive areas that cannot easily be 
disrupted.  In 2006, the main lobby of the building was remodeled to improve security.  
Over the years, ten small HVAC units were added to improve working conditions when 
the capacity of the original HVAC unit was not capable of meeting occupant heating and 
cooling needs.   
 
PROJECT BACKGROUND 
 
In 2007, Council directed staff to make tenant improvements to the dilapidated men’s 
locker room.  Located in the basement of the building, the men’s locker room, along with 
the exercise and shower rooms, is the only area available for Police Department staff to 
store uniforms, field equipment, and personal items while on duty.  These rooms have 
several issues including, but not limited to: 

• Minimal ventilation 
• Severely limited overhead clearance due to piping and ventilation ducting 
• Non-compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) 

 
Staff returned to Council in October 2007 and received approval for a preliminary design 
contract for $148,158 with Poirier.  The analysis addressed the dilapidated condition of 
the locker room area, analyzed the electrical and mechanical system for the men’s 
locker and exercise rooms, and included recommendations.  A full building system 
assessment was not included in the study.  Upon completion, the design architect’s  



Joint Council And Redevelopment Agency Agenda Report 
Contract For Professional Services For The Police Station Seismic And Structural Analysis 
Services Project 
May 18, 2010 
Page 3 

 

 

 
examination revealed a number of substantial issues with the original HVAC unit that 
included the following: 

• Inability to meet the building heating and cooling needs 
• Gross inefficiency 
• Well beyond useful life expectancy 
 

Separate from the impaired HVAC, the study indicated that the replacement of the main 
switchboard, transformer, and distribution panel was long overdue.  As these units were 
originally installed circa 1950s, replacement parts are no longer available.  Furthermore, 
due to its age and impedance, the transformer is extremely inefficient. 
 
In July 2008, staff presented the preliminary design analysis to Council, which included 
three options on how to proceed: 

Option A: Upgrade locker and exercise rooms 
Option B: Upgrade locker and exercise rooms and install an emergency generator 
Option C: Upgrade locker and exercise rooms and install an emergency generator 

and new HVAC system 
 

Council chose Option C in hopes of addressing more of the building deficiencies, for a 
total project cost of $5.3 million.  During that meeting, Council approved an additional 
$365,117 for the design consultant to perform this additional design work.  Council also 
directed staff to include the women’s restroom remodel, and to return with a revised 
estimate and anticipated program impacts.  In addition, Council determined that the 
appropriate funding source for the project should be RDA funds.    The Council made 
the findings of fact needed to fund a publicly owned capital project with redevelopment 
funds. 
 
With the increased scope, staff expanded the initial design review and returned to 
Council and RDA Board in December 2008 with a refined project scope.  The revised 
total project cost estimate was $8 million for the new work which includes $6 million for 
construction.  Council subsequently approved the expanded design scope and 
increased cost, noting that the bulk of additional expense was attributed to: 

• The women’s locker room upgrade 
• Necessary replacement of the entire HVAC ducting system 
• Required asbestos and lead removal 
• Required relocation of all building occupants during construction 

 
In February 2009, with an expanded project scope that would impact the entire Police 
Department staff, an internal Project Stakeholder Group was assembled to assist with 
critical decisions.  The group included the Police Chief, a Police Lieutenant, the Public 
Works Director, the Housing and Redevelopment Manager, and the Community  



Joint Council And Redevelopment Agency Agenda Report 
Contract For Professional Services For The Police Station Seismic And Structural Analysis 
Services Project 
May 18, 2010 
Page 4 

 

 

 
Development Director, along with a Principal Engineer managing the project.  As the 
design progressed, detailed information about the complexity of the Police Station  
temporary relocation resulted in a projected relocation cost of $2 million, 
disproportionate with the actual construction cost estimate of $6 million, and pushing the 
total project cost estimate to $9.5 million.  Given the significant impact of relocation in 
both cost and Police Department staff, efforts began to complete an entire building 
assessment, including a review of the existing structure’s seismic stability. 
 
In June 2009, structural engineers from Ehlen, Spiess & Haight, Inc., were retained to 
provide a preliminary seismic evaluation and report of the building’s structural systems.  
The report identified a significant number of structural deficiencies and recommended a 
more comprehensive investigation, including computer modeling and an analysis of the 
building structural frame.  The results of the preliminary review indicated that the 
building did not meet the California Building Code’s Seismic Performance Standards for 
Police Facilities, referred to as “Immediate Occupancy” (or “immediately operational 
following a maximum probable earthquake in a 500 year return period”).   
 
Additionally, there was concern about meeting minimum safety requirements in the front 
half of the building, referred to as “Life Safety”, (a seismic performance standard that 
allows for occupants to safely exit the building though the building may not be habitable 
again).  Based on concerns about the seismic capability of the building, staff is 
requesting approval to further investigate the condition of the structure and costs 
associated with a possible retrofit of the building. 
 
CONSULTANT SERVICES 
 
The work by Coffman will consist of seismic and structural analysis of the Police Station 
building, and will include research into the original construction of the building and 
testing of the structure, followed by computer modeling to determine the seismic 
performance during an earthquake.  Additionally, retrofit models and their costs will be 
developed to meet “Life Safety” and “Immediate Occupancy” service standards.  This 
information will be presented to Council in a subsequent Council report.  Coffman was 
selected through an RFP process as the most qualified consultant.  They have 
successfully completed other projects at similar police facilities, schools, and hospitals.  
Staff recommends that Council authorize, by Resolution, the Public Works Director to 
execute a contract with Coffman in the amount of $99,446 for seismic and structural 
analysis, and authorize the Public Works Director to approve expenditures of up to 
$10,000 for extra services that may result from necessary changes in the scope of work. 
 



Joint Council And Redevelopment Agency Agenda Report 
Contract For Professional Services For The Police Station Seismic And Structural Analysis 
Services Project 
May 18, 2010 
Page 5 

 

 

 
The work by Poirier will complete a building assessment.  The building assessment is 
meant to identify conditions of the building to aid in discussions and decisions about the 
building’s future.  The assessment would include the following key building elements: 

1. HVAC  
2. Electrical 
3. Plumbing  
4. ADA 
5. Roof 
6. Lead and Asbestos 
7. Summary of the Seismic Structural Results   

 
Staff recommends that Council, by Resolution, authorize the General Services Manager 
to issue a purchase order contract to Poirier in the amount of $19,800 for the building 
assessment, and authorize the General Services Manager to approve expenditures of 
up to $2,000 for extra services that may result from necessary changes in the scope of 
work.   
 
NEXT MILESTONE 
 
Following the completion of the seismic analysis and building assessment, staff 
anticipates that they will have building retrofit options by November 2010, and will 
schedule the item for Finance Committee review and recommendation before returning 
to Council and Board in early 2011.  Based on a final decision by Council in early 2011, 
staff anticipates that the process to develop final plans and specifications for a seismic 
retrofit project, including relocation planning, will likely take more than one year to 
complete.  The schedule’s most significant “unknown” will be the level of relocation 
effort required by the final project.   
 
FUNDING 
 
The following summarizes the cost of seismic analysis and building assessment:  
 

ESTIMATED TOTAL COST 
 
Seismic Analysis (by Contract by Coffman) $99,446

Coffman Extra Services $10,000

Building Assessment (by Contract with Poirier) $19,800

Poirier Extra Services $2,000

Project Management (by City Staff)  $20,000

TOTAL COST $151,246
 



Joint Council And Redevelopment Agency Agenda Report 
Contract For Professional Services For The Police Station Seismic And Structural Analysis 
Services Project 
May 18, 2010 
Page 6 

 

 

 
With approximately $7.4 million in the RDA project account, there are sufficient funds to 
cover these costs.   
 
HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE SECTION 33445.1 
 
Health and Safety Code Section 33445.1 provides that a redevelopment agency, with 
the consent of the legislative body, may pay for the installation and construction of 
public improvements on property located outside and not contiguous to a 
redevelopment project area, but within the community, if the legislative body (City 
Council) makes certain findings of fact. The proposed findings of fact are set forth in the 
attached Resolution recommended for adoption by the City Council.  
 
 
PREPARED BY: Joshua Haggmark, Principal Civil Engineer\mj 
 Brian Bosse, Housing and Redevelopment Manager 
 Gil Torres, Police Captain 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Christine F. Andersen, Public Works Director 
 Paul Casey, Assistant City Administrator 
 Cam Sanchez, Police Chief  
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 



1 

RESOLUTION NO. ____ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA APPROVING AND ADOPTING THE 
FINDINGS REQUIRED BY HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 
SECTION 33445.1 FOR REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
FUNDING OF CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS FOR THE  
POLICE STATION RENOVATION LOCATED OUTSIDE 
AND NOT CONTIGUOUS TO THE CENTRAL CITY 
REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AREA AND AUTHORIZING 
CERTAIN OTHER ACTIONS 

WHEREAS, the Redevelopment Agency of the City of Santa Barbara is undertaking 
certain activities for the planning and execution of redevelopment projects in the Central 
City Redevelopment Project Area (“CCRP”); 

WHEREAS, In order to meet the public safety needs of the residents, visitors and 
commercial activities occurring within the CCRP, the ageing and inadequate Police 
Station must be renovated; 

WHEREAS, The Police Station is located outside and is not contiguous to the CCRP; 
and 

WHEREAS, The  Redevelopment Agency may, with the consent of the City Council, 
pay all or part of the cost of the construction of the Police Station Renovation that is 
publicly owned and is located outside and not contiguous to the CCRP, but is located 
within the City of Santa Barbara, if the City Council makes the findings set forth below. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA 
BARBARA AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1.  The Police Station Renovation is of primary benefit to the CCRP because 
the Police Station is located half of a block from the CCRP and provides public safety 
services to the CCPR.   The existing Police Station is ageing and inadequate to serve 
the public safety needs of the residents, visitors and businesses located within the 
CCRP.  The Police Station must be renovated in order to efficiently address the public 
safety needs of the residents, visitors and businesses located within the CCRP. 

SECTION 2.  The Police Station Renovation will help eliminate blight within the CCRP 
by ensuring that adequate and efficient public safety is continually provided within the 
CCRP.  Increasing the safety and security of residents, visitors and businesses within 
the CCRP will generate increased pedestrian, commercial and visitor activity which will 
itself lead to increased investment and the elimination of blight and the factors that lead 
to blight in the CCRP.  

SECTION 3.  No other reasonable means of financing the Police Station Renovation is 
available to the community. Funds from general obligation bonds, revenue bonds, 
special assessment bonds and Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act bonds, are not 



2 

available and issuance of new debt by the City to finance the Police Station Renovation 
is not feasible.  The City, along with the state of California and federal government, is 
facing an economic crisis of historic proportions and is, therefore, unable to devote 
declining General Fund revenues to fund public improvements.  Taxpayers, also 
suffering from record unemployment levels and increased living costs, are unable and 
unwilling to increase taxes, even to finance necessary public safety improvements.   

SECTION 4.  The payment of funds for the Police Station Renovation is consistent with 
the Agency’s 2010-2014 Implementation Plan adopted pursuant to Section 33490 which 
provides as follows: 
 

“Police Department Building Renovations:  Seismic and structural upgrades of 
the police station headquarters at 215 E. Figueroa Street. Interior remodeling 
would upgrade the locker and exercise rooms, install an emergency generator 
and new heating, ventilation and air conditioning (HVAC) and electrical system.  
This project will eliminate blight that begins with the degradation of infrastructure 
and will prevent blight by providing safe and well-maintained support facilities for 
emergency response within the Project Area.” 

SECTION 5.  The Police Station Renovation is provided for in the Agency’s 
Redevelopment Plan. The Redevelopment Plan provides as follows: 
 

“Section 415 Public Improvements: The Agency is authorized to cause, provide, 
or undertake, or to make provision with any person or public entity for the 
installation or construction of such public improvements and public utilities 
including placing said utilities underground either within or without the Project 
Area as are necessary to carry out this Plan.  Such public improvements include, 
but are not limited to, streets, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, street lights, sewers, 
storm drains, traffic signals, street trees, electrical distribution systems, 
communications systems, natural gas distribution systems, water distribution 
systems, fire hydrants, parks and playgrounds and public buildings.” 
 

The Plan specifically authorizes the Agency to provide for or undertake with any public 
entity for the installation or construction of public buildings outside the boundaries of the 
CCRP.   
 
SECTION 6. The City Council authorizes the Public Works Director to execute a 
Professional Services contract with Coffman Engineers for engineering services in the 
amount of $99,446 for Police Station seismic and structural analysis and to approve 
expenditures of up to $10,000 for extra services that may result form necessary 
changes in the scope of work. 
 
SECTION 7. The City Council further authorizes the General Services Manager to issue 
a Purchase Order to Paul Poirier and Associates Architects for building assessment 
services in the amount of $19,800 and approve expenditures of up to $2,000 for extra 
services that may result from necessary changes in the scope of work.  



Agenda Item No._____________ 

File Code No.  330.03 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: May 18, 2010 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing To Acquire Property Interests At 306 West Ortega 

Street By Eminent Domain For The Ortega Street Bridge 
Replacement Project 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council: 
 
A. Accept the Addendum to the Certified Final Environmental Impact 

Statement/Environmental Impact Report (EIS/EIR) for the Lower Mission Creek 
Flood Control Project (State Clearing House SCH No. 1998101061, dated 
March 10, 2008), prepared by the City’s Environmental Analyst for the Ortega 
Street Bridge (Bridge) Replacement Project ; and 

B. Adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of Necessity by the Council of the 
City of Santa Barbara for the Real Property at 306 West Ortega Street, Adjacent 
Access Easement, and Adjacent Parking Easement, all Located on Portions of 
Santa Barbara County Assessor’s Parcel Number 037-073-011. 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
The Ortega Street Bridge Replacement Project (Project) will replace the existing bridge 
over Lower Mission Creek.  The Project is an approved Federal Highway Bridge 
Program project with oversight provided through Caltrans.  Construction of the Project is 
scheduled to begin in 2011. 
 
The City must purchase various property interests for the Project, and offers have been 
made to affected owners.  To date, with the exception of Mission Creek Properties, LLC 
(Mission Creek Properties), which owns the property at 306 West Ortega Street, all of 
the City’s purchase offers have been accepted.  All property interests and their status 
are shown on Attachment 1, and the necessary interests are outlined on Attachment 2. 
 
The purpose of this hearing is to determine the public necessity to acquire certain 
remaining property interests at 306 West Ortega Street (Property Interests), to make the 
necessary findings to use the Eminent Domain process, and to adopt the proposed 
Resolution of Necessity (Resolution).  Even though a tentative settlement purchase  



Council Agenda Report 
Public Hearing To Acquire Property Interests At 306 West Ortega Street By Eminent 
Domain For The Ortega Street Bridge Replacement Project 
May 18, 2010 
Page 2 

 

 
agreement is now being drafted and may soon be signed, as a precaution to enable 
commencement of the Project on the optimum schedule, the proposed Resolution is 
recommended to be adopted by Council to authorize the City Attorney to initiate action to 
acquire the Property Interests by eminent domain action, if it becomes necessary. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Project requires the City to purchase certain rights of way, including two residential 
properties, and various permanent and temporary easements, as shown on 
Attachment 1.  The City must acquire the rights of way in accordance with applicable 
laws and guidelines, with oversight provided by Caltrans to ensure City eligibility for 
reimbursement of Project costs using Highway Bridge Replacement and Rehabilitation 
funds provided by the Federal Highway Administration. 
 
To date, the City purchase offers have been accepted by the owners of the following 
properties:  309 West Ortega Street, 314 West Ortega Street, 627 Bath Street, 631 Bath 
Street, and 620 Castillo Street.  As previously approved by Council, steps are ongoing 
by staff to finalize those purchases. 
 
Property Interests – 306 West Ortega Street 
 
Efforts are ongoing to obtain a purchase agreement with Mission Creek Properties to 
enable the City to purchase certain Property Interests, including its property at 306 West 
Ortega Street, together with adjacent access and parking easements.  The Property 
Interests are located on portions of the property that contain eleven residential rental 
units and one commercial unit, known as 306, 308, and 310 West Ortega Street, and 
701, 705, and 709 Bath Street, all owned by Mission Creek Properties.  The rental unit at 
306 West Ortega Street is a separate structure, occupied by tenants.  No other rental units 
at this location are needed for the Project. 
 
Based on recent discussions between City staff and Mission Creek Properties, a 
purchase agreement may soon be signed, but if the steps to obtain the purchase 
agreement and to close the escrow are not completed on schedule, the Resolution will 
enable steps by the City Attorney to obtain legal possession as allowed by law to keep 
the Project on track.  The potential for delay and increased Project costs are the primary 
reasons why the use of eminent domain may become necessary to acquire the Property 
Interests. 
 
Tenant Relocation 
 
The tenants at 306 West Ortega Street will be displaced by the Project because the 
residential unit is located within the work area.  The unit will not be removed, but it will 
not be habitable during the Project.  Steps are being taken in accordance with 
applicable laws and guidelines to relocate the tenants who presently occupy the rental 
unit to acceptable replacement housing. 



Council Agenda Report 
Public Hearing To Acquire Property Interests At 306 West Ortega Street By Eminent 
Domain For The Ortega Street Bridge Replacement Project 
May 18, 2010 
Page 3 

 

 
Purpose of Hearing 
 
In order to proceed with eminent domain, it is required to first conduct a public hearing 
concerning the Property Interests being sought by the City.  Subject to the evidence 
presented at such hearing, Council should consider adoption of the Resolution to 
authorize their acquisition through the use of eminent domain if it ultimately becomes 
necessary. 
 
As required by Section 1245.235 et seq. of the California Code of Civil Procedure, written 
notices were mailed to the owner, Mission Creek Properties, at least fifteen (15) days 
before the scheduled Council hearing to provide notice of Council’s intent to hear any 
evidence and to consider the possible adoption of the Resolution.  The notice satisfies all 
legal noticing requirements for the hearing. 
 
As provided in the California Code of Civil Procedure, the public hearing related to the 
proposed adoption of the Resolution should be limited to discussion of the requisite 
statutory findings as set forth in Section 1240.030 of the Code of Civil Procedure, namely: 
 

a. That the public interest and necessity require the proposed Project. 
b. That the proposed Project is planned or located in the manner that will be the most 

compatible with the greatest public good and the least private injury. 
c. That the property described in the Resolution is necessary for the proposed Project. 
d. That either the offer required by Section 7267.2 of the California Government Code 

has been made to the owner or owners of record, or the offer has not been made 
because the owner cannot be located with reasonable diligence. 

 
The proposed Resolution should be adopted by Council to authorize the City Attorney to 
initiate Superior Court eminent domain litigation, if necessary.  Pursuant to Section 
1245.240 of the California Code of Civil Procedure, the proposed Resolution requires 
approval by at least five Council members. 
 
Following the recommended adoption by Council of the proposed Resolution, discussions 
between Mission Creek Properties, the City Attorney, and City staff, with coordination by 
assigned agents of Hamner, Jewell and Associates, consultant on behalf of the City, will 
continue to possibly acquire the Property Interests by successful negotiations.  The escrow 
necessary to finalize City acquisition of the Property will also be expedited as much as 
possible. 
 
Environmental Review 
 
Staff recommends that Council also accept the Addendum to the Certified Final EIS/EIR 
for the Lower Mission Creek Flood Control Project prepared by the Project Environmental 
Analyst.  The Addendum was prepared to address the Project specific elements pertaining 
to the Lower Mission Creek Flood Control Project (State Clearinghouse No. 1998101061).   



Council Agenda Report 
Public Hearing To Acquire Property Interests At 306 West Ortega Street By Eminent 
Domain For The Ortega Street Bridge Replacement Project 
May 18, 2010 
Page 4 

 

 
The Addendum concludes that the Project impacts are not substantial and do not involve 
new significant impacts nor a substantial increase in severity of previously identified 
impacts. 
  
The Addendum is available to the public at the City Clerk’s office and at the Public Counter 
located at the Community Development Department offices at 630 Garden Street. 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
The table shown on Attachment 3 summarizes all estimated Ortega Street Bridge 
Replacement Project costs.  The total cost is estimated at $6,790,400, with combined 
costs estimated at $2,150,000, for acquiring the necessary property interests. 
 
In addition to payment of the costs for the purchase of properties and easements 
required for the Project, it is necessary to pay the costs for the relocation of displaced 
occupants pursuant to federal and state laws and guidelines.  Once all displaced 
occupants have been relocated to replacement dwellings, the final costs will be known.  
The associated right of way and construction costs will also be shared between the City 
(11.47%), and grant funding (88.53%), in accordance with applicable guidelines and the 
formula shown on Attachment 3. 
 
There are sufficient appropriations in the Streets Capital Fund to cover the City’s costs.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 1) Project Area Aerial Photo  
 2) Acquisitions And Easements For Ortega Street Bridge  

Replacement Project  
 3) Estimated Total Project Cost 
 
PREPARED BY: John Ewasiuk, Principal Civil Engineer/DI/sk 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Christine F. Andersen, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator’s Office 



ATTACHMENT I

314W. Ortega
Mares Trust

306 W. Ortega
Mission Creek
Properties LLC

303 W. Ortega
City Acquired 2007 631 Bath

Vaughan Trust

600 Block Bath
Flood Control District

621 Bath
Herman & Dolores Ortega

309 W. Ortega
City Acquired
April 7,2010 620 Castllo

Housing Authority City

PROJECT AREA AERIAL PHOTO



ATTACHMENT 2 
 
Acquisitions And Easements For Ortega Street Bridge Replacement Project 
 
The properties and easements needed for the Ortega Street Bridge Replacement 
Project are identified below. 
 

Address Description Status 
303 West Ortega Street, 
City Property 

Entire Property Acquired; 
Structure Located Within 
Mission Creek Work Area 

City Acquired 2007 

306 West Ortega Street, 
Mission Creek Properties 
LLC 

Portion Property to be 
Acquired in Fee, along with 
Easement for Access, and 
Along with Easement for 
Parking; Structure Located 
Within Mission Creek Work 
Area 

Offer Pending Ongoing 
Contacts by City Agents 
with Owner, Mission 
Creek Properties, LLC; 
Hearing Relating to 
Possible Use of 
Eminent Domain 

309 West Ortega Street, 
Manuel & Juana Figueroa 

Entire Property Acquired; 
Structure Within Mission 
Creek Work Area 

City Acquired and Closed 
Escrow on April 7, 2010; 
Approved by 
Agreement 23,296 

314 West Ortega Street, 
Mares Family Trust 

Temporary Construction 
Easement and Mission Creek 
Easement Acquired; 
Released Narrow Strip of 
Land within Mission Creek 

City Acquired Easements 
on April 27, 2010, by 
Agreement 23,410; 
Escrow Pending 

620 Castillo Street, 
Housing Authority of City 

Temporary Construction 
Easement Acquired for Work 
in Mission Creek 

City Acquired Easement 
on April 27, 2010, by 
Agreement 23,413 

627 Bath Street, 
Herman & Dolores Ortega 

Mission Creek Easement 
Acquired for Alignment of 
Mission Creek 

City Acquired Easement 
on April 27, 2010, by 
Agreement 23,411; 
Escrow Pending 

600 Block Bath Street, 
County Flood Control District 

Encroachment Permit for 
Work in Mission Creek 

Issuance of Permit by 
County Flood Control 
District Pending 

631 Bath Street, 
Vaughan Trust 

Mission Creek Easement 
Acquired for Alignment of 
Mission Creek 

City Acquired Easement 
on April 27, 2010, by 
Agreement 23,412; 
Escrow Pending 

 



ATTACHMENT 3 
 

ORTEGA BRIDGE REPLACEMENT PROJECT 
 

ESTIMATED TOTAL PROJECT COST 
 

PROJECT PHASE HBP SHARE CITY SHARE ESTIMATED COSTS

Design Phase * $707,760 $176,940 $884,700

Right of Way 
Phase $1,903,395 $246,605 $2,150,000

Construction 
Phase $3,324,920 $430,780 $3,755,700

Totals $5,936,075 $854,325 $6,790,400

 
 
The table above shows total estimated Project costs. The Project is currently in 
the Right of Way Phase and has been authorized up to $2,150,000 (per written 
approval by Caltrans). 
 
Caltrans is overseeing the City's steps to purchase all properties and easements 
for the Project, since 88.53% of the City’s eligible right of way and construction 
costs will be reimbursed by the Federal Highway Bridge Program (HBP) through 
Caltrans.  The City will be responsible for 11.47% of these eligible costs. 
 

* The Design Phase of this Project included 80% Federal Highway 
Bridge Program reimbursement with the City responsible for 20% of 
eligible Design costs. 



1 

RESOLUTION NO. ________ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF NECESSITY BY THE COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA FOR THE REAL 
PROPERTY AT 306 WEST ORTEGA STREET, ADJACENT 
ACCESS EASEMENT, AND ADJACENT PARKING 
EASEMENT, ALL LOCATED ON PORTIONS OF SANTA 
BARBARA COUNTY ASSESSOR’S PARCEL 
NUMBER 037-073-011 

 
 
THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA DOES HEREBY DETERMINE 
AND RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1. That on May 18, 2010, after fifteen days written notice to the owners of the 
property described hereafter, as they appeared on the last equalized County 
Assessment Roll, the City Council held a hearing for the purpose of allowing the owners 
thereof and other persons a reasonable opportunity to appear and be heard on the 
following matters: 
 a. That the public interest and necessity require the proposed project; 
 b. That the proposed project (identified as the Ortega Street Bridge Replacement 
Project, as depicted on City Plan No. C-1-4581, a copy of which is permanently on file 
at the Public Works Department of the City of Santa Barbara) is planned or located in 
the manner that will be the most compatible with the greatest public good and the least 
private injury; 
 c. That the property and easements described in the Resolution are necessary for 
the proposed project; 
 d. That the offer required by Section 7267.2 of the California Government Code 
has been made to the owner or owners of record; 
 e. That the proposed project has been evaluated in the Certified Lower Mission 
Creek Flood Control (LMCFC) Project Environmental Impact Statement/Environmental 
Impact Report (EIS/EIR) (State Clearinghouse No. 1998101061) and an Addendum to 
the LMCFC Project EIS/EIR dated March 10, 2008, pursuant to the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).  The Addendum indicates that no new significant 
impacts or changes in circumstances or regulations would be anticipated since the 
original EIS/EIR was certified; and, 
 f. Such other and further matters as may be referred to in California Code of Civil 
Procedure §1245.230. 
 
SECTION 2. That the Council of the City of Santa Barbara does hereby find, determine 
and declare that: 
 a. The public interest and necessity require the proposed project; 
 b. The proposed project is planned or located in the manner that will be the most 
compatible with the greatest public good and the least private injury; 
 c. All the property and easements described in this Resolution are necessary for 
the proposed project; 



2 

 d. The offer required by Section 7267.2 of the California Government Code has 
been made to the owner or owners of record (or the offer has not been made because 
the owner cannot be located with reasonable diligence); and 
  
e. The proposed project was evaluated in the Certified Lower Mission Creek Flood 
Control (LMCFC) Project Environmental Impact Statement/Environmental Impact 
Report (EIS/EIR) (State Clearinghouse No. 1998101061) and an Addendum to the 
LMCFC Project EIS/EIR dated March 10, 2008, pursuant to the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).  The certified EIS/EIR determined that there would 
be unavoidable impacts associated with the project.  The Addendum indicates that no 
new significant impacts or changes in circumstances or regulations would be anticipated 
since the original EIS/EIR was certified 
 
  The taking of the real property and the easements described herein is 
authorized by Section 19 of Article I of the California Constitution, Section 37350.5 of 
the California Government Code, and Sections 1240.010 through 1240.125 of the 
California Code of Civil Procedure. 
 
SECTION 3. That the Council of the City of Santa Barbara does hereby declare that it is 
the intention of said City to acquire said real property and said easements described 
herein in its name in accordance with the provisions of the laws of the State of California 
with reference to condemnation procedures. 
 
SECTION 4. That the said real property is located in the City of Santa Barbara, County 
of Santa Barbara, State of California, as more particularly described on Exhibit A and 
depicted on Exhibit B, both attached hereto and incorporated herein; reserving to 
Grantor for the benefit of the remainder property, a permanent non-exclusive license for 
existing utilities servicing the remainder of the Real Property; provided, however, that 
City and its successors and assigns have the right to relocate the utility service lines so 
long as Grantor’s utility services are maintained from available public utilities located 
within adjacent Ortega Street or Bath Street; and reserving to Grantor for the benefit of 
the remainder property, a non-exclusive easement for ingress and egress by vehicles 
and pedestrians, as described on Exhibit A and depicted on Exhibit B; and reserving to 
Grantor for the benefit of the remainder property, an exclusive easement for parking of 
lawfully registered and operable vehicles, as described on Exhibit A and depicted on 
Exhibit B.  
 
SECTION 5. That the said easement for access is located in the City of Santa Barbara, 
County of Santa Barbara, State of California, as more particularly described on 
Exhibit C and depicted on Exhibit D, both attached hereto and incorporated herein, 
being a permanent non-exclusive appurtenant easement for ingress and egress, for the 
benefit of that portion of the Real Property granted in fee, as described herein on Exhibit 
A and depicted on Exhibit B.  
 



3 

SECTION 6. That the said easement for parking is located in the City of Santa Barbara, 
County of Santa Barbara, State of California, as more particularly described on 
Exhibit E and depicted on Exhibit F, both attached hereto and incorporated herein, 
being a permanent appurtenant exclusive easement for parking of lawfully registered 
and operable vehicles, for the sole and exclusive benefit of that portion of the Real 
Property granted in fee, as described herein on Exhibit A and depicted on Exhibit B.  
 
SECTION 7. That the City Attorney is hereby authorized and directed to prepare, 
institute and prosecute in the name of the City, and is authorized to retain a law firm as 
Special Counsel for such proceedings, if necessary, in the proper Court having 
jurisdiction thereof, as may be necessary for the acquisition of the real property, the 
adjacent easement for parking, and the adjacent easement for access.  Said counsel is 
also authorized and directed to obtain a necessary order of court granting to said City 
the right of immediate possession and occupancy of said real property and certain 
adjacent easements, and, at the discretion of the City Attorney, to approve and execute 
a settlement agreement or stipulated judgment vesting title to the real property and the 
easements described herein on terms and conditions approved by the City Attorney for 
the best interests of the City. 
 
SECTION 8. That the Environmental Quality Control Act of 1970, as amended, and 
guidelines adopted pursuant thereto, have been complied with insofar as the above 
project is concerned by the preparation of the Addendum to the Certified Lower Mission 
Creek Flood Control (LMCFC) Project Environmental Impact Statement/Environmental 
Impact Report (SCH No. 1998101061, dated March 10, 2008), which is hereby 
approved and directed to be filed with the City Clerk. 















Agenda Item No._____________ 

File Code No.  640.07 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: May 18, 2010 
 
TO: Mayor and Council members 
 
FROM: Planning Division, Community Development Department  
 
SUBJECT: Appeal Of Single Family Design Board Denial Of Retaining Walls For 

1464 La Cima Road 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council: 
 
A. Grant the appeal of Scott McCosker with direction on a modified design and grant 

the project preliminary approval making the findings contained in the staff report; 
and  

B. Refer the project back to the Single Family Design Board Consent Calendar for 
final approval consistent with Council’s direction on a modified design. 

 
  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
On March 1, 2010, the Single Family Design Board (SFDB), by unanimous vote, denied a 
request to approve as-built retaining wall improvements at the rear of a private residence.  
The denial was requested by the owner after several design attempts failed to obtain 
project approval.  The property owner (McCosker) has appealed this decision and 
requests that Council overturn the denial of the project, asserting that the proposed 
improvements comply with the Neighborhood Preservation Ordinance (NPO) and would 
be compatible with the surrounding neighborhood.   The appellant states that there is no 
basis for denial of the project which, as modified, will meet design guidelines since no tree 
removals are proposed (see Attachment 1). 
 
It is staff’s position that this project is a relatively small improvement involving minor 
grading quantities, short lengths of retaining walls and common garden landscaping that 
are located in the rear yard of a private residence.  The current project’s level of 
controversy has been heightened given several disputes and appeals between the 
appellant and adjoining neighbor (Cook) over the last eight years. The project’s review by 
the SFDB was further complicated given the initial retaining wall work was constructed 
without permit, did not meet building codes and by the level of opposition expressed at 
each hearing from the neighbor.  Although some of the work is as-built, the applicant has 
shown a willingness to respond to some of the SFDB’s direction to adjust the design,  



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of Single Family Design Board Denial Of Retaining Walls For 1464 La Cima Road 
May 18, 2010 
Page 2  

 

change wall heights, and regrade the site to help soften the appearance of the walls.  Staff 
understands the concerns expressed by the SFDB relative to protection of oak trees, 
however, sufficient reports have been submitted by a certified arborist indicating that the 
grading and retaining wall work has not and would not negatively impact the oak trees.  
 
Staff is of the opinion, that a slightly revised project can be supported at this site with some 
further reductions in the size of terraces.  It is recommended that Council deny the appeal 
but allow a revised project to move forward which involves a redesign to remove the 
terrace area on the eastern side of the property to lessen grading impacts on site.  Staff 
recommends that Council refer the modified project back to SFDB Consent Calendar for 
final approvals.  
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 
 
The project site is located on a 10,615 square foot lot on the upper portion of La Cima 
Road, on the west side of the City within the Bel Air residential neighborhood.  This 
property and surrounding area are within the Hillside Design District.  The project site is 
currently developed with a multi-story residence and attached two-car garage. The 
project improvements are to be located in the rear yard of the residence situated 
primarily on a sloped terrain (over 30%) that had historically been unimproved, given the 
steep terrain and quantity of oak trees.  
 
The project scope consists of a proposal to remove existing non-permitted Allan block 
retaining walls and construct approximately 120 linear feet of reinforced block wall and 
Allan block retaining walls ranging in height from 3.5 to 6.5 feet.  The project will abate 
violations in a current code enforcement case.  The application is the second denial by the 
SFDB of this project improvement.  The first proposal to permit as-built walls in this 
location was also denied without prejudice by the SFDB in June, 2009.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Background 
 
On March 1, 2010, the SFDB denied, on a 7/0 vote, a request for as-built retaining wall 
improvements at the rear of a private residence.  The property owner (McCosker) has 
appealed this decision and requests that Council overturn the denial of the project, 
asserting that the current proposal is a revised design that addresses the concerns raised 
by the SFDB, and which is compatible with the surrounding neighborhood.  The appellant 
states that there is no basis for denial and that the project as modified will meet design 
guidelines and protect the oak trees on the property. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of Single Family Design Board Denial Of Retaining Walls For 1464 La Cima Road 
May 18, 2010 
Page 3  

 

SFDB Review 
 
Since October 2008, the SFDB has reviewed this grading and retaining wall project at a 
total of six hearings under two separate applications.  Over the course of these reviews, 
several issues of concern were raised at each hearing by the Board and adjacent 
neighbor including that of the structural integrity of the as-built walls, level of side yard 
encroachments, possible impacts to adjacent neighbor’s privacy, impacts to oak trees 
and lack of substantial redesign.  The applicant responded to these concerns by 
providing more detailed information, professional reports, and several changes to the 
proposed retaining walls and grading plan. The first application was reviewed at four 
meetings until the SFDB denied the project on June 22, 2009 on a 4/1/1 vote after 
concerns over a lack of structural information, setback encroachment, and lack of 
redesign.  Since the as-built improvements were under code enforcement, a 
subsequent application was required to be filed to abate the ongoing violation.  
 
A slightly different proposal, which included new landscaping plan, was submitted to 
Planning staff in August 2009 for informal review, pending the completion of a structural 
analysis of the existing walls.  In December 2009, the structural evaluation was 
completed and revealed that some of the Allan block walls would need to removed or 
reconstructed to meet building codes.  A new proposal to demolish, reconstruct and 
redesign the garden area was developed as a result. 
 
A revised plan and new application was submitted in January 2010 and the SFDB 
reviewed this revised project for the first time on February 1, 2010. The proposal 
involved a substantial reduction of Allan block walls areas since the original design.  
The circular garden terrace was relocated away from the property line; the total amount 
of terraced retaining wall areas was reduced from 100 lineal feet to 36 lineal feet with 
the removal of several Allan block walls. The SFDB continued to request a redesign, 
citing concerns about the amount of footing excavations and construction under the oak 
tree drip lines (see SFDB minutes, Attachment 2).   
  
On March 1, 2010, the applicant returned with slightly revised design and letter from the 
arborist, but the SFDB continued to be concerned about building retaining walls in close 
proximity to the oak trees.  The Board appeared to disagree with the introduction of an 
additional, smaller terrace area along the eastern side.  Finding limited support for the 
revised plan, the Board denied the project at the applicant’s request and stated that the 
hillside would be negatively affected by the proposed grading and retaining walls.    
 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of Single Family Design Board Denial Of Retaining Walls For 1464 La Cima Road 
May 18, 2010 
Page 4  

 

Appeal Issues 
 
Neighborhood Compatibility 
 
Appellant’s Position:  The improvements should be allowed to remain.  Other 
neighbors support the retaining wall improvements and the project will be compatible 
with the neighborhood. 
 
Staff’s Position:  The SFDB found the project was not redesigned sufficiently to lessen 
impacts to the oak trees and the hillside.  The SFDB, however, did not state that the as-
built retaining wall work was not compatible with the neighborhood.  The SFDB did not 
cite a lack of consistency with NPO guidelines as a reason for project denial.  The 
SFDB did not indicate they could not support the project because of aesthetic concerns 
or the inability to make the required Neighborhood Preservation Ordinance (NPO) 
findings for natural topography protection.   The SFDB was more focused on scaling 
back the scope of the project design and limiting grading impacts to the oak trees (see 
Attachment 3).  
 
Staff’s position is that these landscaping improvements are relatively minor and not 
highly visible to the general public.  Staff agrees with the SFDB that the terrace design 
should be reduced to a smaller garden area.   Staff is of the opinion, that a complete 
denial of the project is not necessary and there is insufficient basis to require removal of 
all these as-built improvements.  A slightly revised project can be supported at this site 
with some further reduction is the size of terraces.  Therefore, it is recommended that 
Council require that the terrace area on the eastern side of the property be removed.   
Staff believes that the reduced sized project could be found compatible with the 
surrounding neighborhood and consistent with design guidelines (see Attachment 3, 
dated May 12, 2010) 
 
Protection of Oak Trees 
 
Appellant’s Position:  Two arborist report letters were provided to the SFDB that 
concluded the as-built installation of retaining walls do not negatively impact the oak 
trees.  The arborist report letter provides a conclusion that there would be long-term 
benefits of retaining the hillside and improved drainage to assist in protection of tree 
roots (see Attachment 4). 
   
Staff’s Position:  The SFDB has specific landscape design guidelines for native tree 
protection.   The following guidelines are applicable: 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of Single Family Design Board Denial Of Retaining Walls For 1464 La Cima Road 
May 18, 2010 
Page 5  

 

 1. Earth Disturbance Prohibitions.  No earth disturbance is allowed in the 
circular area one-third the distance of the overall canopy/dripline as measured 
from the trunk.  (For example, if the tree canopy is 30 feet, no work can be done 
in the first 10 feet from the outside edge of the trunk in all directions.)  In other 
areas under the canopy/dripline, earth may only be disturbed with hand tools. 

 2. Arborist’s Report.  Any work within the general vicinity of the dripline of a 
native or specimen tree may require an Arborist’s Report.  If an Arborist’s Report 
is required, the SFDB may defer to the report’s recommendations. 

 
The SFDB guidelines give flexibility to require reports to be submitted and to allow for 
the opinions of a professional arborist to be considered when considering potential 
impacts to tree canopies or roots.  It appears that the SFDB did not completely defer to 
the arborist report’s recommendations and still had concerns regarding the impacts to 
the oak trees.  Staff does not believe the proposed grading work will adversely impact 
the oak trees given the expert opinions provided by the Arborist. However, staff 
recommends that no additional terraces be proposed on the eastern side of the property 
and that only a pathway be provided for access purposes. Staff does not support 
additional expansion of terraced areas or any proposal to expand grading fill in areas 
not already disturbed.   
 
Neighborhood Preservation Findings 
 
Appellant’s Position:  The proposed improvements have been modified and should be 
allowed to remain.  There is no basis for project denial.  
   
Staff’s Position:  The SFDB can deny a project if the appropriate NPO findings cannot 
be made.  In the Hillside Design District, additional sloped lot findings are required to be 
made prior to granting project approvals involving natural topography protection, 
appropriate building scale, grading and tree preservation.  Staff agrees with the SFDB 
that the proposed retaining walls could be reduced to better fit into the hillside but not 
because of potential impacts to the oak trees.   Maintaining the natural topography and 
the steepness of the site should be the basis for limiting grading and the amount of 
retaining walls at this site. In this particular case, the retaining walls are of a minor 
nature, do not greatly impact adjoining neighbor’s privacy, are not highly visible, and do 
not involve large quantities of grading.   
 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of Single Family Design Board Denial Of Retaining Walls For 1464 La Cima Road 
May 18, 2010 
Page 6  

 

Conclusion 
 
Staff believes Council should direct the applicant to reduce the size of terraced areas as 
suggested earlier in the report.  Staff has concerns regarding the amount of design 
review and City time already spent on this minor project. For this reason, staff 
recommends the project be referred back to the Consent Calendar with specific 
direction from Council.  This type of grading and landscaping project can be found 
consistent with design guidelines and is similar to other approved grading projects.   
 
Staff recommends that Council grant the appeal with direction to the applicant to modify 
the project design as noted in this report, making the findings contained in this report, 
and refer the project back to the SFDB Consent Calendar for final approval of the 
project consistent with the direction of Council. 
 
 

NPO Findings (SBMC Chapter 22.69) 
 
The City Council finds the following: 
 

1. Consistency and Appearance.  The proposed development is consistent 
with the scenic character of the City and will enhance the appearance of 
the neighborhood.  Appropriate materials are being used for the walls 
which will not be highly visible. 

2. Compatibility.  The proposed development is compatible with the 
neighborhood, and its size, bulk, and scale are appropriate to the site and 
the neighborhood.  The height and design of the walls are appropriate for 
the hillside area. 

3. Quality Architecture and Materials.  The proposed buildings and 
structures are designed with quality architectural details.  The proposed 
materials for the retaining walls and colors maintain the natural 
appearance of the ridgeline or hillside. 

4. Trees.  The proposed project does not include the removal of or 
significantly impact any designated Specimen Tree, Historic Tree, or 
Landmark Tree.  The proposed project preserves and protects healthy, 
non-invasive trees since no trees are proposed for removal. 

5. Health, Safety, and Welfare.  The public health, safety, and welfare are 
appropriately protected and preserved. 

6. Good Neighbor Guidelines.  The project generally complies with the 
Good Neighbor Guidelines regarding privacy, landscaping, noise, and 
lighting. 

7. Public Views.  The development, including proposed structures and 
grading, preserves significant public scenic views of and from the hillside.  
The proposed work is screened from public view. 

 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of Single Family Design Board Denial Of Retaining Walls For 1464 La Cima Road 
May 18, 2010 
Page 7  

 

Additional NPO Findings:  Hillside Design District and Sloped Lot Findings. 
 

1. Natural Topography Protection.  The development, including the 
proposed structures and grading, is appropriate to the site, is designed to 
avoid visible scarring, and does not significantly modify the natural 
topography of the site or the natural appearance of any ridgeline or 
hillside. 

2. Building Scale.  The development maintains a scale and form that blends 
with the hillside by minimizing the visual appearance of structures and the 
overall height of structures. 

3. Grading.  The proposed grading will not significantly increase siltation in 
or decrease the water quality of streams, drainages or water storage 
facilities to which the property drains; and the proposed grading will not 
cause a substantial loss of southern oak woodland habitat given no trees 
are being removed. 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 1. Appellant’s letter dated March 11, 2010 

2. Single Family Design Board Minutes Summary 
3. Reduced copies of plans dated October 20, 2008, 

February 1, 2010, March 1, 2010, and May 12, 2010  
4. Arborist letters dated October 3, 2008 and March 1, 2010 
5. History and Chronology   
 

PREPARED BY: Jaime Limon, Senior Planner II 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Paul Casey, Community Development Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 
 









































 
 

CORRESPONDENCE 
 

RELATED TO ITEM NO. 9 



























Agenda Item No._____________ 

File Code No.  520.04 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: May 18, 2010 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Planning Division, Community Development Department 
 
SUBJECT: Introduction Of Medical Marijuana Storefront Collective Dispensary 

Ordinance 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That Council introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending the Municipal Code by Revising 
Chapter 28.80 and Establishing Revised Regulations and Procedures for Medical 
Marijuana Storefront Collective Dispensaries. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
The Ordinance Committee has recently held four hearings on additional City ordinance 
amendment provisions for the permitting of medical marijuana dispensaries within the City, 
and it has reached a consensus on certain amendments.  The major components are of 
the consensus are the following:  1.  Medical marijuana may be distributed via storefront 
locations only if storefront dispensaries operate as collectives; 2. a maximum of five 
storefront collectives in seven possible areas of the City; 3. Collective membership is 
limited to the tri-county area; 4. a 24-hour waiting period to join a collective; 5. 
Membership, cultivation and medical records must be kept (All records except medical 
records to be inspected by City Staff with limited notice and medical records inspection 
requires search or inspection warrant);  6. a permit decision by Staff Hearing Officer, with a 
possible appeal directly to Council; and 7) Revisions previously recommended by 
Ordinance Committee.  A public hearing before the Planning Commission is scheduled for 
May 13, and the Planning Commission recommendations will be presented to Council 
during the oral staff presentation.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Previous Council Direction 
 
On February 23, 2010, the Council reviewed a draft revision to the Medical Cannabis 
Dispensary Ordinance, and directed the Ordinance Committee to consider all of the 
following: 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Introduction Of Medical Marijuana Storefront Collective Dispensary Ordinance 
May 18, 2010 
Page 2 

 

1. Possible revisions to the latest draft version of the Ordinance regulating Medical 
Marijuana Dispensaries in order to reduce the maximum number of dispensaries 
within the City to five (5),  

2. Providing that major alcohol and drug rehabilitation facilities would be protected uses 
and adjusting the allowed areas for dispensaries appropriately,  

3. Allowing dispensaries in the Cottage Hospital area, and  
4. Further defining the operational parameters of storefront collective/cooperatives in 

order to ensure compliance with Proposition 215 and the state SB 420 statutes.  
 
The Ordinance Committee met on March 16th, March 30th, April 13th, and April 27th, 
came to consensus on these and other issues and made the following 
recommendations to Council in the attached ordinance for introduction. 
 
Ordinance Committee Recommendations 
 
1. Rename the ordinance from the “Medical Cannabis Dispensary Ordinance,” to the 

“Medical Marijuana Storefront Collective Dispensary Ordinance.” 
2. Medical marijuana can only be made available to Qualified Patients and Primary 

Caregivers at storefront locations if such locations are operated as “collectives or 
cooperatives” in the manner required by SB 420. 

3. Allow a total of five (5) storefront collective dispensaries within the City.  This 
number was a compromise between Committee members who wanted more and 
Committee members who wanted fewer. 

4. Allow storefront collective dispensaries in seven possible areas of the City (Maps 
showing the areas are included as Attachments 1-6): 
a. Outer State 
b. Upper De la Vina 
c. Mission Street 
d. Downtown West 
e. Downtown East 
f. Milpas 
g. West Pueblo Medical (formerly referred to as the Cottage Hospital area) 
The Ordinance Committee discussed the elimination of the Downtown West and 
Downtown East areas, but did not reach consensus to do so. 

5. Prohibit storefront dispensaries within 500 feet of the 17 highest priority drug and 
alcohol recovery facilities within the City. 



Council Agenda Report 
Introduction Of Medical Marijuana Storefront Collective Dispensary Ordinance 
May 18, 2010 
Page 3 

 

6. Restrict storefront collective dispensary membership to residents of Santa Barbara, 
San Luis Obispo and Ventura Counties.  This was a compromise of the Ordinance 
Committee members, as one wanted membership to be from throughout the state, 
another wanted City residents only, and the third wanted Santa Barbara County 
residents only.  This compromise was reached in conjunction with also requiring a 
24 hour waiting period before becoming a collective member. 

7. Require a 24 hour initial waiting period in order to join a storefront collective and 
restricting individuals to membership in one collective at a time.  The purpose of this 
requirement is to attempt to discourage medical marijuana tourism, wherein 
residents of the tri-county area would come to Santa Barbara just to obtain medical 
marijuana.   

8. Specific cultivation, membership, and financial records of the collective are required 
to be maintained, with possible inspection by specified City Staff on limited prior 
notice. 

9. Member medical records may be inspected by City Staff, but only with a search 
warrant or inspection warrant. 

10. Dispensary inspection of the dispensary premises with limited notice by CDD City 
Staff. 

11. Continue the current process of initial review by the Staff Hearing Officer, but have 
appeals heard by the Council, bypassing the Planning Commission.  The current 
process requires a decision by the Staff Hearing Officer, with an appeal to the 
Planning Commission.  The previous revisions proposed adding a Council appeal of 
the Planning Commission decision.     
The Ordinance Committee members felt that while an administrative approval might 
be appropriate, an appeal to Council was necessary.  Since there is no current 
process for an administrative approval to be appealed to Council, and there are 
current processes wherein discretionary approval are appealed directly to Council 
(e.g. Architectural Board of Review), the Ordinance Committee recommended that 
the initial decision should remain with the Staff Hearing Officer, but that any  appeal 
would be heard by the Council. 

12. All  amendment recommendations previously forwarded to Council, including the 
following: 
a. Prohibit storefront dispensaries within 1000 feet of Casa Esperanza. 
b. Prohibition on storefront collectives in mixed-use buildings, where the residential 

units are condominiums, and the project is existing at the time the revisions are 
adopted. 

c. Allowable dispensary areas are described by block face, rather than by 
prohibition radii. 



Council Agenda Report 
Introduction Of Medical Marijuana Storefront Collective Dispensary Ordinance 
May 18, 2010 
Page 4 

 

d. Security provided by a separate “Private-party operator” security company, which 
is licensed by the State. 

e. More discretion for the Staff Hearing Officer, and Council on appeal, in the form 
of changes to the criteria for issuance (see SBMC §28.80.0070.B.6. and B.10). 

f. Annual review of the storefront collective dispensary operation for legal 
compliance by the Police and Community Development Departments. 

g. Reduce the amortization period of six months from the effective date of the 
ordinance for the closure of those dispensaries which existed prior to the 
adoption of the current ordinance.  If these ordinance revisions are adopted as 
recommended by the Ordinance Committee, the effect on pending, approved, 
appealed, legally operating and nonconforming dispensaries would be as 
outlined in Attachment 7  Most pending applications would not be allowed to 
proceed because their locations are no longer allowable.  One pending 
application would not be allowed to move forward because it’s in an existing, 
mixed use building with residential condominiums.  In those areas where multiple 
applications are pending, the application deemed complete first would be allowed 
to go to hearing first.  If the first complete application were to be approved, the 
remaining applications would then be precluded from approval.  If it were not 
approved, then the next complete application would be allowed to move forward 
in the permitting process. 

h. Minor and other miscellaneous changes to the ordinance language. 
 
MMDO Suspension Ordinance Status 
 
The attached ordinance contains a section that repeals the MMDO suspension on the 
effective date of these revisions, which is 30 days after the adoption of the ordinance.  
Currently, pending applications are being processed through application completeness.  
Upon repeal of the suspension, staff will schedule complete applications for hearings, 
and terminate applications that are precluded because of the newly adopted revisions.  
Additionally, the six month amortization period will begin.  During that time, permitted 
dispensaries must update their operational plans, and nonconforming dispensaries must 
either obtain a permit or close down. 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
The City will charge an hourly rate for the processing of Medical Marijuana Dispensary 
Permits, so that the full cost of processing the permits and for each annual review will 
be covered. 
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Introduction Of Medical Marijuana Storefront Collective Dispensary Ordinance 
May 18, 2010 
Page 5 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Outer State Street Area map 
2. Upper De la Vina Area map 
3. Mission Area map 
4. Downtown East and West Area map 
5. Milpas Area map 
6. West Pueblo Medical Area map 
7. Table showing status of dispensaries 

 
PREPARED BY: Danny Kato, Senior Planner 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Paul Casey, Assistant City Administrator 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



ST
AT

E S
T

HWY 101

MODOC RD

VIA
 LU

CE
RO

CALLE REAL

S HOPE AVE

HITCHCOCK WAY

N HOPE AVE

N ONTARE RD

SA
N 

RE
MO

 D
R

ONRAM
P

OFFRAMP

SU
NS

ET
 R

D

MA
DR

ON
A D

R

VIA
 LA

GU
NA

TOYON DR MC
CA

W 
AV

E

N LA CUMBRE RD

GROVE LN

LA
 C

OL
IN

A R
D

CANON DR

S ONTARE RD

MA
RI

CO
PA

 D
R

LO
S P

IN
OS

 D
R

SU
NS

ET
 D

R

S LA CUMBRE RD

LEE DR

PEACH GROVE LN

CA
ME

LL
IA 

LN

APPLE GROVE LN STEVENS RD

SA
N 

JO
SE

 LN

SA
NT

A M
AR

IA 
LN

AV
ON

 LN

AMAPOLA DR

VIA DIEGO

STATE ST NB OFFRAMP

CA
PR

I D
R

LA
 R

AD
A

SA
N 

GA
BR

IE
L L

N

CALLE NOGUERA

RICHLAND DR

LIN
CO

LN
WO

OD
 D

R

AR
DI

LL
A D

R

BR
EN

T S
T

FA
IR

FA
X 

RD

BROADMOOR PLAZA

S LA CUMBRE LN

PLAZA AVE

ADAIR DR

MONTEREY PINES ST

AL
LE

Y 1
00

 B
LO

CK
 N

. O
NT

AR
E R

D

WOODLEY CT

OS
ITO

 C
T

OFFRAMP

ON
RA

MP

ONRAM
P

CA
LL

E R
EA

L

CA
PR

I D
R

Me
dic

al 
Ca

nn
ab

is 
Dis

pe
ns

ari
es

Ou
ter

 St
ate

 St
ree

t µ

Le
ge

nd Pa
rks

Sc
ho

ols
50

0' 
fro

m 
Pa

rks
50

0' 
fro

m 
Sc

ho
ols

Sta
te 

St.
 Pr

oh
ibi

tio
n

Bri
nk

erh
off

 D
istr

ict
10

00
' fr

om
 C

as
a E

sp
era

nz
a

All
ow

ed
 w/

o R
ec

ov
ery

 Fa
cili

tie
s

Ex
ist

ing
_D

isp
en

sa
rie

s
St

atu
s Ap

pro
ve

d a
nd

 O
pe

rat
ing

Ap
pro

ve
d a

nd
 BP

 Is
su

ed
Ap

pe
ale

d
Pe

nd
ing

No
nc

on
for

mi
ng

Fo
r c

olo
red

 m
ap

s, 
go

 to
 w

ww
.Sa

nta
Ba

rba
raC

A.g
ov

/R
es

ide
nt/

Ma
jor

_P
lan

nin
g_

Eff
ort

s/M
ed

ica
l M

ari
jua

na

Ma
rch

 3,
 20

10

Att
ac

hm
en

t 1

ATTACHMENT 1



ST
AT

E S
T

DE LA VINA ST

ST
AN

LE
Y D

R

SERENA RD

W ALAMAR AVE

SA
MAR

KA
ND

 DR

LAS POSITAS RD

CHAPALA 
ST

WY
OL

A R
D

VERNON RD

LOMITA RD

AR
DEN

 RD

HERMOSA RD

E ALAMAR AVE

CA
LL

E N
OG

UE
RA

W CONSTANCE AVE

MI
RA

DE
RO

 D
R

VE
RD

E V
IST

A D
R

CUESTA RD

W QUINTO ST

EL PRADO RD

ARCHER'S ALLEY

W CALLE CRESPIS

VERNAL AVE

ORELLA
 ST

PE
RE

GR
IN

A R
D

E C
AL

LE
 CR

ES
PIS

EL VEDADO LN

CLINTON TERRACE

W CALLE LAURELES

AL
LE

Y 1
00

 B
LO

CK
 C

AL
LE

 AL
AM

O
CA

LL
E A

LA
MO

AL
LE

Y 1
00

 B
LO

CK
 C

AL
LE

 PA
LO

RA
DO

CALLE CAPISTRANO

E CALLE LAURELES

ALLE
Y B 20

0 B
LO

CK W. ALAMAR AV
E

VE
RD

E V
IST

A D
R

Me
dic

al 
Ca

nn
ab

is 
Dis

pe
ns

ari
es

Up
pe

r D
e l

a V
ina

µ
Le

ge
nd Pa

rks
Sc

ho
ols

50
0' 

fro
m 

Pa
rks

50
0' 

fro
m 

Sc
ho

ols
All

ow
ed

 w/
o R

ec
ov

ery
 Fa

cili
tie

s
Ex

ist
ing

_D
isp

en
sa

rie
s

St
atu

s Ap
pro

ve
d a

nd
 O

pe
rat

ing
Ap

pro
ve

d a
nd

 BP
 Is

su
ed

Ap
pe

ale
d

Pe
nd

ing
No

nc
on

for
mi

ng
Fo

r c
olo

red
 m

ap
s, 

go
 to

 w
ww

.Sa
nta

Ba
rba

raC
A.g

ov
/R

es
ide

nt/
Ma

jor
_P

lan
nin

g_
Eff

ort
s/M

ed
ica

l M
ari

jua
na

Ma
rch

 3,
 20

10

Att
ac

hm
en

t 2

ATTACHMENT 2



STAT
E ST

BATH ST
CHAPALA 

ST

DE LA
 VINA ST

ANACAPA 
ST

HWY 10
1

CASTIL
LO

 ST

GARDEN ST

W ISLAY ST

E ISLAY ST

SANTA 
BARBARA S

T

E VALERIO ST

W VALERIO ST

W SOLA ST
E ARRELLAGA ST

E SOLA ST

LAGUNA S
T

W PEDREGOSA ST

W ARRELLAGA ST W MICHELTORENA ST

E MICHELTORENA ST

SAN PA
SCUAL S

T

W VICTORIA ST

OFFRAMPW LOS OLIV
OS ST

ON
RA

MP
E PEDREGOSA ST

W PADRE ST

SUNSET A
VE

E MISSION ST

E VICTORIA ST

W MISSION ST

W ANAPAMU ST

OLIV
E ST

SAN ANDRES ST

E PADRE ST

LA PAZ AVE

TH
OMAS AV

E

JESMARY LN

W PUEBLO ST

E ANAPAMU ST

ARLIN
GTON AVE

SHERIDAN AV
E

ROSSIER LN
AMERICAN AVE

W PUEBLO ST

OF
FR

AM
P

OF
FR

AM
P

W PEDREGOSA ST

ON
RA

MP

W VALERIO ST

W PADRE ST

W MISSION ST

Me
dic

al 
Ca

nn
ab

is 
Dis

pe
ns

ari
es

Mi
ss

ion

µ
Le

ge
nd Pa

rks
Sc

ho
ols

50
0' 

fro
m 

Pa
rks

50
0' 

fro
m 

Sc
ho

ols
All

ow
ed

 w/
o R

ec
ov

ery
 Fa

cili
tie

s
Ex

ist
ing

_D
isp

en
sa

rie
s

St
atu

s Ap
pro

ve
d a

nd
 O

pe
rat

ing
Ap

pro
ve

d a
nd

 BP
 Is

su
ed

Ap
pe

ale
d

Pe
nd

ing
No

nc
on

for
mi

ng
Fo

r c
olo

red
 m

ap
s, 

go
 to

 w
ww

.Sa
nta

Ba
rba

raC
A.g

ov
/R

es
ide

nt/
Ma

jor
_P

lan
nin

g_
Eff

ort
s/M

ed
ica

l M
ari

jua
na

Ap
ril 

22
, 2

01
0

Att
ac

hm
en

t 3

ATTACHMENT 3



STAT
E ST

HWY 101

BATH ST

CHAPALA 
ST

GARDEN ST

ANACAPA 
ST

DE LA
 VINA S

T

OLIV
E ST

CASTIL
LO

 ST

E COTA ST

LAGUNA S
T

E HALEY ST

SANTA 
BARBARA S

T

E ORTEGA ST

W CARRILLO ST

W SOLA ST

W COTA ST

E GUTIERREZ ST

E CARRILLO ST

W ORTEGA ST
E FIGUEROA ST

E CANON PERDIDO ST

W HALEY ST

W VICTORIA ST W ANAPAMU ST

E DE LA GUERRA ST

E ANAPAMU ST

W FIGUEROA ST

E YANONALI ST

N SALSIPUEDES ST

ONRAMP

E SOLA ST

E VICTORIA ST

OFFR
AMP

SAN PA
SCUAL S

T

W CANON PERDIDO ST

GRAY AV
E

W MICHELTORENA ST

W MONTECITO ST

W ARRELLAGA ST

VINE AV
E

W GUTIERREZ ST

FIG
 AV

E

WENTW
ORTH

 AV
E

CHINO ST
HELENA AV

E

N QUARANTIN
A S

T

EUCLID
 AV

E

E MASON ST

SAN ANDRES ST

ROSE AV
E

PICO AVE

E CABRILL
O BLVD

W VALERIO ST

LLOYD AVE

PALM AVE

CURLEY AV
E

MARILL
A A

VE

ORANGE AV
E

RUTH AVE

KIMBERLY AV
E

W DE LA
 GUERRA ST

WALNUT A
VE

BRADBURY AV
E

EL C
ASERIO

ARLIN
GTON AVE

EQUESTRIAN AVE

RICHARDSON AVE

PARKER WY

DIBBLEE AVE

E MONTECITO ST

REY RD

COTTAGE GROVE AVE

ALLEY 400 B
LOCK N BATH ST

DE LA
 GUERRA STE DE LA GUERRA ST

PALM AVE

OFFRAMP
CHAPALA 

ST
ON

RA
MP

W ANAPAMU ST

ON
RA

MP

SANTA 
BARBARA S

T

ON
RA

MP

OFFR
AMP

OF
FR

AM
P

ANACAPA 
ST

OFF
RAM

P

ONRAM
P

ON
RA

MP

OFFR
AMP

Me
dic

al 
Ca

nn
ab

is 
Dis

pe
ns

ari
es

Do
wn

tow
n E

as
t a

nd
 W

es
t µ

Le
ge

nd Pa
rks

Sc
ho

ols
50

0' 
fro

m 
Pa

rks
50

0' 
fro

m 
Sc

ho
ols

Sta
te 

St.
 Pr

oh
ibi

tio
n

All
ow

ed
 w/

o R
ec

ov
ery

 Fa
cili

tie
s

Ex
ist

ing
_D

isp
en

sa
rie

s
St

atu
s Ap

pro
ve

d a
nd

 O
pe

rat
ing

Ap
pro

ve
d a

nd
 BP

 Is
su

ed
Ap

pe
ale

d
Pe

nd
ing

No
nc

on
for

mi
ng

Fo
r c

olo
red

 m
ap

s, 
go

 to
 w

ww
.Sa

nta
Ba

rba
raC

A.g
ov

/R
es

ide
nt/

Ma
jor

_P
lan

nin
g_

Eff
ort

s/M
ed

ica
l M

ari
jua

na

Ma
y 4

, 2
01

0

Att
ac

hm
en

t 4

ATTACHMENT 4



HW
Y 1

01

N MILP
AS ST

E HALEY ST

E MASON ST

N ALIS
OS ST

E GUTIERREZ ST

E MONTECITO ST

N NOPAL S
T

E COTA ST

N QUARANTIN
A S

T

QUINIENTOS ST

S MILP
AS ST

N SOLEDAD ST

OF
FR

AM
P

OLIV
E ST

S ALIS
OS ST

CARPINTERIA ST

N VOLUNTARIO ST

ON
RA

MP

BOND AVE

N SA
LIN

AS
 ST

E Y
AN

ON
AL

I S
T

N SALSIPUEDES ST

REDDICK ST

S VOLU
NTARIO ST

CACIQUE ST

N CALLE
 CESAR CHAVEZ

S SOLEDAD ST

SALIN
AS PL

UNION AVE

PALM AVE

S QUARANTINA S
T

ALLA
IRE ST

OAK ST

WILS
ON AV

E

EDISON AV
E

ALPHONSE ST

LAGUNA S
T

GARDEN ST

NIELPARK ST

POWERS AV
E

LA 
CADENA S

T

ELIZ
ABETH ST

BREGANTE LN

JENNINGS AVE

LA
WR

EN
CE

 AV
E

NOPALIT
OS WAY

CL
IFT

ON
 ST

JUANA MARIA A
VE

RICHARDSON AVE

INDIO MUERTO ST

CITR
US AV

E

ASHLEY AV
E

ALLE
Y 60

0 B
LO

CK GUTIERREZ ST

SY
CA

MO
RE

 LN

CACIQUE ST

QUINIENTOS ST

OF
FR

AM
P

E YANONALI ST

N VOLUNTARIO ST

ON
RA

MP

OF
FR

AM
P

E YANONALI ST

NO
PA

LIT
OS

 W
AYMe
dic

al 
Ca

nn
ab

is 
Dis

pe
ns

ari
es

Mi
lpa

s

µ

Le
ge

nd Pa
rks

Sc
ho

ols
50

0' 
fro

m 
Pa

rks
50

0' 
fro

m 
Sc

ho
ols

10
00

' fr
om

 C
as

a E
sp

era
nz

a
All

ow
ed

 w/
o R

ec
ov

ery
 Fa

cili
tie

s
Ex

ist
ing

_D
isp

en
sa

rie
s

St
atu

s Ap
pro

ve
d a

nd
 O

pe
rat

ing
Ap

pro
ve

d a
nd

 BP
 Is

su
ed

Ap
pe

ale
d

Pe
nd

ing
No

nc
on

for
mi

ng
Fo

r c
olo

red
 m

ap
s, 

go
 to

 w
ww

.Sa
nta

Ba
rba

raC
A.g

ov
/R

es
ide

nt/
Ma

jor
_P

lan
nin

g_
Eff

ort
s/M

ed
ica

l M
ari

jua
na

Ma
rch

 3,
 20

10

Att
ac

hm
en

t 5

ATTACHMENT 5



BATH ST

W PUEBLO ST

DE LA
 VINA ST

CASTIL
LO

 ST

W QUINTO ST

W JU
NIPERO ST

CHAPALA 
ST

OAK PA
RK LN

W ALAMAR AVE

CA
LL

E R
EA

L

W LOS OLIV
OS ST

TA
LL

AN
T R

D

W PADRE ST

HW
Y 1

01

ORELLA
 ST

NOGALES AVE

OF
FR

AM
P

JESMARY LN

SA
NT

A A
NI

TA
 R

D

FLE
TC

HER AV
E

ALLE
Y 19

00 
BLO

CK QUINTO
 ST

WELLI
NGTO

N AV
E

STAT
E ST

VERNON RD

PARKWAY DR

OAK CREST DR

W CONSTANCE AVE

ALLEY 200 B
LOCK W. QUINTO ST

ALLE
Y 10

0 B
LO

CK W. JU
NIPERO ST

BATH ST

W JU
NIPERO ST

W ALAMAR AV
E

W PUEBLO ST

CASTIL
LO

 ST

W LOS OLIV
OS ST

OAK CREST DR

Me
dic

al 
Ca

nn
ab

is 
Dis

pe
ns

ari
es

We
st 

Pu
eb

lo 
Me

dic
al µ

Le
ge

nd Pa
rks

Sc
ho

ols
50

0' 
fro

m 
Pa

rks
50

0' 
fro

m 
Sc

ho
ols

Sta
te 

St.
 Pr

oh
ibi

tio
n

All
ow

ed
 w/

o R
ec

ov
ery

 Fa
cili

tie
s

Ex
ist

ing
_D

isp
en

sa
rie

s
St

atu
s Ap

pro
ve

d a
nd

 O
pe

rat
ing

Ap
pro

ve
d a

nd
 BP

 Is
su

ed
Ap

pe
ale

d
Pe

nd
ing

No
nc

on
for

mi
ng

Fo
r c

olo
red

 m
ap

s, 
go

 to
 w

ww
.Sa

nta
Ba

rba
raC

A.g
ov

/R
es

ide
nt/

Ma
jor

_P
lan

nin
g_

Eff
ort

s/M
ed

ica
l M

ari
jua

na

Ma
y 4

, 2
01

0

Att
ac

hm
en

t 6

ATTACHMENT 6



Attachment 7 

Pending, Approved, Appealed, Permitted, and Nonconforming Dispensaries 
Necessary Actions Upon Ordinance Adoption 

May 4, 2010, Page 1 of 2 
 
Address Status Location Meets 

Current 
Ordinance? 

Location Meets 
Revised 
Ordinance? 

Action Required 
upon Adoption of 
Revised Ordinance 

Notes 

 

MILPAS 
331 N. Milpas Permitted Yes Yes Amend operational 

plan 
 

500 N. Milpas Permitted Yes No, but OK to 
remain 

Amend operational 
plan 

 

DOWNTOWN EAST 
631 Olive Permitted Yes No, but OK to 

remain 
Amend operational 
plan 

 

302 E Haley Approved by SHO 
Appealed to PC 

Yes, but within 
500 feet of 234 E. 
Haley 

No Withdraw 
application 

 

234 E. Haley Application is 
Pending 

Yes, but within 
500 feet of 302 E. 
Haley 

No Withdraw 
application 

 

OUTER STATE 
16 S. La Cumbre Application is 

Pending 
No Yes Continue processing 

application 
Applicant owns 3128 State, 
which must close 

3128 State Nonconforming No, too close to 
MacKenzie Park 

No 6 months to close  

3516 State Application is 
Pending 
Nonconforming 
status in dispute 

Yes Yes 6 months to get 
permit or close 

Staff believes that this 
dispensary lost its 
nonconforming status. 
Cease and desist order issued. 



Attachment 7 

Pending, Approved, Appealed, Permitted, and Nonconforming Dispensaries 
Necessary Actions Upon Ordinance Adoption 

May 4, 2010, Page 2 of 2 
 
Address Status Location Meets 

Current 
Ordinance? 

Location Meets 
Revised 
Ordinance? 

Action Required 
upon Adoption of 
Revised Ordinance 

Notes 

 

 
DE LA VINA 
2915 De la Vina Application is 

Pending. 
 
Legal status is in 
Dispute 

Yes Yes Continue processing 
application. 
 

Staff believes that this 
dispensary never had 
nonconforming status.  Cease-
and-Desist order issued.  If 
current application is approved, 
this dispensary could remain. 

DOWNTOWN WEST 
403 Chapala Application is 

Pending 
Yes No Withdraw 

Application 
826 De la Vina Application is 

Pending 
Yes No Withdraw 

Application 
211 W. Carrillo Application is 

Pending 
Yes No Withdraw 

Application 

These three applications are 
pending in Downtown West 
area, but none meet the new 
locational requirements. 

741 Chapala Approved by SHO 
Appealed to PC 

Yes No, in Existing 
Mixed Use Bldg. 

Withdraw 
Application 

 

100 E. Haley Closed No, too close to 
Veracruz Park 

No None, Already 
Closed 

This dispensary closed as result 
of enforcement efforts 

26 Parker Way Nonconforming Yes No 6 months to close This dispensary’s status as 
nonconforming was in dispute, 
but has since provided evidence 
to substantiate operational status 

 



 1

CITY COUNCIL INTRODUCTION DRAFT 
NOT SHOWING CHANGES FROM CURRENT CODE 

MAY 18, 2010 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. _____ 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA AMENDING THE 
MUNICIPAL CODE BY REVISING CHAPTER 
28.80 AND ESTABLISHING REVISED 
REGULATIONS AND PROCEDURES FOR 
MEDICAL MARIJUANA STOREFRONT 
COLLECTIVE DISPENSARIES. 

 
 The City Council of the City of Santa Barbara does ordain 
as follows: 
 
SECTION ONE.  Chapter 28.80 of Title 28 of the Santa Barbara 
Municipal Code, entitled “Medical Marijuana Dispensaries,” is 
amended to read as follows: 
 
Section 28.80.010 Purpose and Intent. 
 
It is the purpose and intent of this Chapter to regulate the 
storefront distribution of medical marijuana in order to ensure 
the health, safety and welfare of the residents of the City of 
Santa Barbara. The regulations in this Chapter, in compliance 
with the State Compassionate Use Act of 1996 and the State 
Medical Marijuana Program Act (“the SB 420 statutes”), are not 
intended and do not interfere with a patient’s right to use 
medical marijuana as authorized under the Compassionate Use Act 
or the SB 420 statutes, nor do they criminalize the possession 
or cultivation of medical marijuana by specifically defined 
classifications of persons, as authorized under the 
Compassionate Use Act. Under the Compassionate Use Act of 1996 
and the SB 420 statutes, only qualified patients, persons with 
identification cards, and primary caregivers may legally 
cultivate medical marijuana collectively and provide it to 
qualified patients or person with identifications cards. 
Therefore, medical marijuana collective within the City which 
operate storefront dispensary locations must comply with all 
provisions of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code (“SBMC”) for 
obtaining a permit for the storefront dispensary as well as 
complying with the Compassionate Use Act, the SB 420 statutes, 
and all other applicable local and state laws. Nothing in this 



 2

Chapter purports to permit activities that are otherwise illegal 
under federal, state, or local laws. 
 
Section 28.80.020 Definitions. 
 
For the purpose of this Chapter, the following words and phrases 
shall have the following meanings: 
 

A. Applicant. A person who is required to file an 
application for a Medical Marijuana Storefront Collective 
Dispensary permit under this Chapter, including an 
individual owner, managing partner, officer of a 
corporation, or any other dispensary operator, Management 
Member, employee, or agent of a Medical Marijuana 
Storefront Collective Dispensary. 

  
B. Drug Paraphernalia. As defined in California Health and 
Safety Code Section 11014.5, and as may be amended from 
time to time. 

 
C. Identification Card. As defined in California Health and 
Safety Code Section 11362.71 and as may be amended from 
time to time. 
 
D. Management Member. A Medical Marijuana Collective member 
with responsibility for the establishment, organization, 
registration, supervision, or oversight of the operation of 
a Collective including, but not limited to, members who 
perform the functions of president, vice president, 
director, operating officer, financial officer, secretary, 
treasurer, or manager of the Collective.  

 
D. Medical Marijuana Storefront Collective Dispensary or 
Storefront Collective Dispensary. An incorporated or 
unincorporated association which is composed of four (4) or 
more Qualified Patients and their designated Primary 
Caregivers who associate at a particular location or 
Property within the City in order to collectively or 
cooperatively cultivate marijuana for medical purposes and 
who, acting through Management Members, distribute the 
collectively cultivated medical marijuana to the members of 
their Collective at a storefront dispensary located within 
a non-residential zone of Santa Barbara, all in accordance 
with the Compassionate Use Act of 1996 (California Health 
and Safety Code sections 11362.5) and Health and Safety 
Code section 11362.7 through 11362.9. For the purposes of 
this Chapter, the term “Medical Marijuana cooperative” (or 
“cooperative”) shall have the same meaning as a “Medical 



 3

Marijuana collective” (or a “collective”) and the term 
“cooperative” shall have the definition and formation 
requirements established for it by state law.  
 
A Storefront Collective Dispensary shall not include the 
dispensing of medical marijuana by primary caregivers to 
qualified patients in the following locations so long as 
the location and operation of the clinic, health care 
facility, hospice, or residential care facility is 
otherwise permitted by the Municipal Code and operated in 
the manner required by applicable state laws:  

 
1. a clinic licensed pursuant to Chapter 1 of Division 
2 of the state Health and Safety Code;  

 
2. a health care facility licensed pursuant to Chapter 
Two of Division 2 of the state Health and Safety Code; 

 
3. a residential care facility for persons with 
chronic life-threatening illness licensed pursuant to 
Chapter 3.01 of Division 2 of the state Health and 
Safety Code;  

 
4. residential care facility for the elderly licensed 
pursuant to Chapter 3.2 of Division 2 of the state 
Health and Safety Code; 

 
5. a residential hospice, or a home health agency 
licensed pursuant to Chapter 8 of Division 2 of the 
state Health and Safety Code; 

 
provided that any such clinic, health care facility, 
hospice or residential care facility also fully complies 
with applicable laws including, but not limited to, the 
Compassionate Use Act of 1996 and the SB 420 statutes. 
  
E. Permittee. The Management Member or Members identified 
to the City by an Applicant as such and to whom a City 
Storefront Collective Dispensary permit has been issued and 
someone who also qualifies as a primary caregiver. 
  
F. Person with an Identification Card. A person as 
described in California Health and Safety Code Section 
11362.71 through 11362.76, and as amended from time to 
time. 

 



 4

G. Physician. A licensed medical doctors including a doctor 
of osteopathic medicine as defined in the California 
Business and Professions Code. 

 
H. Primary Caregiver.  A person as defined and described in 
either subdivision (d) or (e) of California Health and 
Safety Code Section 11362.7 as it may be amended from time 
to time. 

 
I. Property. The location or locations within the City at 
which Medical Marijuana Collective members and Management 
members associate to collectively or cooperatively 
cultivate or to distribute Medical Marijuana exclusively to 
their Collective members.  
 
J. Qualified Patient. A person as defined and described in 
California Health and Safety Code Section 11362.5 et seq., 
and as it may be amended from time to time. For the 
purposes of this Chapter, a Qualified Patient shall also 
include a Person with an Identification Card. 

 
K. School.  An institution of learning for minors, whether 
public or private, offering a regular course of instruction 
required by the California Education Code. This definition 
includes an elementary school, middle, or junior high 
school, senior high school, or any special institution of 
education for persons under the age of eighteen years, 
whether public or private.  
 
L. Reasonable Compensation. Compensation commensurate with 
reasonable wages and benefits paid to employees of federal 
Internal Revenue Code qualified non-profit organizations 
which employees have similar job descriptions and duties, 
as well as a comparable required level of experience and 
education, similar prior earnings or wage history, and 
number of hours typically worked per week. The payment of a 
bonus shall not be considered reasonable compensation.  

 
Section 28.80.030 Storefront Collective Dispensary - Permit 

Required to Operate. 
 
It shall be unlawful for any person to engage in, to conduct or 
carry on (or to permit to be engaged in, conducted or carried 
on) in or upon his or her Property located within the City, the 
operation of a Storefront Collective Dispensary unless an 
Applicant has first obtained and continues to maintain in full 
force and effect a valid Storefront Collective Dispensary Permit 
issued by the City for that Property pursuant to this Chapter.  



 5

 
Section 28.80.040  Imposition of Medical Marijuana Storefront 

Collective Dispensary Permit Fees. 
 
Every application for a Storefront Collective Dispensary permit 
shall be accompanied by an application fee (in an amount 
established by resolution of the City Council) at a amount 
calculated to recover the City’s full cost of reviewing and 
issuing the Storefront Collective Dispensary permit) and the 
filing of a complete required application pursuant to this 
Chapter. The application fee shall not include the standard City 
fees for fingerprinting, photographing, and background check 
costs and shall be in addition to any other business license fee 
or permit fee imposed by this Code or other governmental 
agencies.  
 
Section 28.80.050 Limitations on the Permitted Location of a 

Storefront Collective Dispensary.  
 
A. Permissible Zoning for Storefront Collective Dispensaries. 
Storefront Collectives Dispensaries may only be permitted and 
located on parcels within the City which are zoned for 
commercial uses and on those street block faces listed in the 
exhibit to this Chapter designated as “Medical Marijuana 
Storefront Collectives Dispensaries – Allowed Locations” dated 
as of May 18, 2010.  
 
B.  Storefront Locations. Except for those locations shown as 
allowed within the West Pueblo Medical Area on the exhibit 
attached to this Chapter which have been specifically approved 
by the Staff Hearing Officer as non-storefront locations 
pursuant to this Chapter, a Storefront Collective Dispensary 
shall only be located in a visible store-front type ground-floor 
location which provides good public views of the Dispensary 
entrance, its windows, and the entrance to the Storefront 
Collective Dispensary premises from a public street. 
 
C. Commercial Areas and Zones Where Storefront Collective 
Dispensaries Not Permitted. Notwithstanding subparagraph (A) 
above, a Storefront Collective Dispensary shall not be allowed 
or permitted in the following locations or zones: 
 

1. On a parcel located within 1000 feet of another 
permitted or allowed Storefront Collective Dispensary; or 
 
2. On a parcel on State Street between Cabrillo Boulevard 
and Arrellaga Street;  

 



 6

D.  Locational Measurements. The distance between a Storefront 
Collective Dispensary and above-listed restrictions shall be 
calculated as a straight line from any parcel line of the 
Property on which the Storefront Collective Dispensary is 
located to the parcel line the real property on which the 
facility, building, or structure, or portion of the building or 
structure, in which the above-listed use occurs or is located.  
 
For the purposes of determining compliance with the locational 
restrictions imposed by this section, the permissibility of a 
proposed Storefront Collective Dispensary location shall be 
determined by City staff based on the date the permit 
application has been deemed complete by the City with the 
earliest complete applications deemed to have priority over any 
subsequent Storefront Collective Dispensary application for any 
particular permissible location. 
 
E. One Collective Dispensary for Each Area of the City. No more 
than one Storefront Collective Dispensary may open or operate in 
each of the areas of the City designated as allowed or 
permissible Collective Dispensary location areas in the exhibit 
attached to this Chapter except for those areas which, at the 
time of the adoption of the ordinance amending this Chapter, 
already have more than one Storefront Collective Dispensary on a 
legal non-conforming basis and which are allowed to continue to 
operate on a legal non-conforming basis under Section Two of the 
Ordinance amending this Chapter - in which case a legal non-
conforming Dispensary may be allowed to continue to operate in 
such an area.  
  
F. Maximum Number of Medical Marijuana Storefront Collective 
Dispensaries Allowed Permits. Notwithstanding the above, the 
City may not issue a total of more than five (5) Collective 
Dispensary permits at any one time and no more than five (5) 
permitted or allowed Collective Dispensaries may legally operate 
within the City, including specifically those dispensaries which 
are open and operating in a legal nonconforming manner at the 
time of the adoption of the ordinance amending this Chapter.  
 
Section 28.80.060  Storefront Collective Dispensary – Permit 

Application Requirements. 
 
A. Application Filing. A complete Performance Standard Permit 
application submittal packet is required for a Storefront 
Collective Dispensary permit and it shall be submitted (along 
with all required fees) and all other information and materials 
required by this Chapter in order to file a complete application 
for a Storefront Collective Dispensary Permit for a specific 



 7

Property. All applications for Storefront Collective Dispensary 
permits shall be filed with the Community Development Department 
using forms provided by the City. It is the responsibility of 
the Applicant to provide all of the information required for 
approval of the permit. The application shall signed by a 
Management Member under penalty of perjury. 
 
B. Eligibility for Filing. If a Storefront Collective Dispensary 
permit application is filed by a non-owner of the Property, it 
shall also be accompanied by a written affirmation from the 
Property owner expressly allowing the Applicant and Management 
Member to apply for the Permit and acknowledging the Applicant’s 
right to use and occupy the Property for the intended Medical 
Marijuana Storefront Collective Dispensary use. 
 
C. Filing Date. The filing date of any application shall be the 
date when the City officially receives the last submission of 
information or materials required in compliance with the 
submittal requirements specified herein and the application has 
been deemed complete in writing by the City. 
 
D. Effect of Incomplete Filing. Upon notification that an 
application submittal is incomplete, the Applicant shall be 
granted an extension of time to submit all materials required to 
complete the application within thirty (30) days. If the 
application remains incomplete in excess of thirty (30) days the 
application shall be deemed withdrawn and new application 
submittal shall be required in order to proceed with the subject 
request.  
 
E. Filing Requirements – Proposed Operational Plan. In 
connection with a permit application, an Applicant for a 
Storefront Collective Dispensary permit shall provide a detailed 
“Operations Plan” for the proposed Dispensary and, upon issuance 
of the Storefront Collective Dispensary permit by the City, 
shall operate the Storefront Collective Dispensary in accordance 
with the Operations Plan, as approved, at all times. A required 
Operations Plan shall consist of at least the following: 
 

1. Site Plan and Floor Plan. A Storefront Collective 
Dispensary application shall have a proposed site plan and 
floor plan which shows a lobby waiting area at the entrance 
to the Storefront Collective Dispensary used to receive 
qualified patients or primary caregivers, and a separate 
and secure designated area for dispensing medical marijuana 
to qualified patients or designated primary caregivers 
members of the Collective. The primary entrance shall be 
located and maintained clear of barriers, landscaping and 



 8

similar obstructions so that it is clearly visible from 
public streets, sidewalks or site driveways. 

 
2. Storage. A Storefront Collective Dispensary shall have 
suitable locked storage on the premises, identified and 
approved as a part of the operational security plan for the 
after-hours storage of medical marijuana. 

 
3. Security Plans. A Storefront Collective Dispensary shall 
provide a plan to provide adequate security on the premises 
of the Dispensary which shall be maintained in accordance 
with the Dispensary security plan approved by the Chief of 
Police and as reviewed by the Staff Hearing Officer. This 
plan shall include provisions for adequate lighting and 
alarms in order to insure the safety of persons and to 
protect the premises from theft. All security guards used 
by dispensaries shall be licensed and employed by a state 
licensed private-party operator security company retained 
by the Storefront Collective Dispensary and each security 
guard used shall possess a valid state Department of 
Consumer Affairs “Security Guard Card” at all times. 
Security guards shall not possess or carry firearms or 
tazers while working at a Collective Dispensary.  

 
4. Security Cameras. The Security Plan shall show how the 
Property will be monitored at all times by closed-circuit 
television for security purposes. The camera and recording 
system must be of adequate quality, color rendition and 
resolution to allow the ready identification of an 
individual on or adjacent to the Property. The recordings 
shall be maintained at the Property for a period of not 
less than thirty (30) days. 

 
5. Alarm Systems. The Operations Plan shall provide that 
professionally monitored burglary and fire alarm systems 
shall be installed and such systems shall be maintained in 
good working condition within the Storefront Collective 
Dispensary at all times. 

 
6. Emergency Contact. A Operations Plan shall provide the 
Chief of Police with the name, cell phone number, and 
facsimile number of a Management Member to act as an on-
site community relations staff person to whom the City may 
provide notice of any operating problems associated with 
the Storefront Collective Dispensary.  
 
7. Public Nuisance. The Operations Plan shall provide for 
the Management Members of the Collective Dispensary to take 



 9

all reasonable steps to discourage and correct 
objectionable conditions that constitute a public or 
private nuisance in parking areas, sidewalks, alleys and 
areas surrounding the premises and adjacent properties 
during business hours if directly related to the patrons of 
the subject Storefront Collective Dispensary. 

 
8. Loitering Adjacent to a Dispensary. The Operations Plan 
shall provide that the Management Members will take all 
reasonable steps to reduce loitering by Collective members 
in public areas, sidewalks, alleys and areas surrounding 
the Property and adjacent premises during the business 
hours of the Storefront Collective Dispensary. 

 
9. Trash, Litter, Graffiti. The Operations Plan shall 
provide that the Management Members will keep area which 
includes the sidewalks adjoining the Dispensary plus ten 
(10) feet beyond property lines (as well as any parking 
lots under the control of the Dispensary) clear of litter, 
debris, and trash. 

 
10. Removal of Graffiti. The Operations Plan shall provide 
a method for the Management Members to promptly remove all 
graffiti from the Property and parking lots under the 
control of the Collective within 72 hours of its 
appearance. 

 
F. Filing Requirements – Information Regarding Storefront 
Collective Dispensary Management. A Storefront Collective 
Dispensary Applicant shall also provide the following Management 
Member and Collective information as part of a Storefront 
Collective Dispensary application: 
 

1. The name, address, telephone number, title and 
function(s) of each Management Member; 
 
2. For each Management Member, a fully legible copy of one 
(1) valid government issued form of photo identification, 
such as a state driver’s license or identification card.  
Acceptable forms of government issued identification 
include, but are not limited to, driver’s license or photo 
identity cards issued by the state Department of Motor 
Vehicles (or equivalent) that meet REAL ID benchmarks, a 
passport issued by the United States or by a foreign 
government, U.S. Military ID cards (active duty or retired 
military and their dependents) or a Permanent Resident 
card. 

 



 10

3. Written confirmation as to whether the Collective or a 
Management Member of the Collective previously operated in 
this or any other county, city or state under a similar 
license or permit, and whether the Collective or Management 
Member Applicant ever had such a license or permit revoked 
or suspended by and the reason(s)therefore. 

 
4. If the Collective is a corporation or a cooperative, a 
certified copy of the Collective’s Secretary of State 
Articles of Incorporation, Certificate(s) of Amendment, 
Statement(s) of Information and a copy of the Collective’s 
By laws; 

 
5. If the Collective is an unincorporated association, a 
copy of the articles of association; 
 
6. The name and address of the Applicant’s or Collective’s 
current designated Agent for Service of Process; 

 
7. A statement dated and signed by each Management Member, 
of the Collective, under penalty of perjury, that the 
Management Member has personal knowledge of the information 
contained in the Dispensary Application, that the 
information contained therein is true and correct, and that 
the application has been completed under the supervision of 
the identified Management Member(s); 

 
8. Whether Edible Medical Marijuana products will be 
prepared and distributed at the proposed Dispensary 
Property; 

 
9. The Property location or locations where any and all 
Medical Marijuana will be collectively cultivated by the 
Collective members and Management Members; 

 
 
Section 28.80.070 Criteria for Review of Collective Dispensary 

Applications by the City Staff Hearing 
Officer. 

 
A. Decision on Application. Upon an application for a Storefront 
Collective Dispensary permit being deemed complete, the Staff 
Hearing Officer shall either issue a Storefront Collective 
Dispensary permit, issue a Storefront Collective Dispensary 
permit with conditions in accordance with this Chapter, or deny 
a Storefront Collective Dispensary permit.  
 



 11

B. Criteria for Issuance. The Staff Hearing Officer, or the City 
Council on appeal, shall consider the following criteria in 
determining whether to grant or deny a Medical Marijuana 
Storefront Collective Dispensary permit: 
 

1. That the Collective Dispensary permit and the operation 
of the proposed Dispensary will be consistent with the 
intent of the Compassionate Use Act of 1996 and the SB 420 
Statutes for providing medical marijuana to qualified 
patients and primary caregivers and the provisions of this 
Chapter and with the Municipal Code, including the 
application submittal and operating requirements herein. 

 
2. That the proposed location of the Storefront Collective 
Dispensary is not identified by the City Chief of Police as 
an area of increased or high crime activity. 
  
3. For those applicants who have operated other Storefront 
Collective Dispensaries within the City, that there have 
not been significant numbers of calls for police service, 
crimes or arrests in the area of the applicants former 
location. 

 
4. That issuance of a Collective Dispensary permit for the 
Collective Dispensary size requested is appropriate to meet 
needs of community for access to medical marijuana. 

 
5. That issuance of the Collective Dispensary permit would 
serve needs of City residents within a proximity to this 
location. 

 
6. That the location is not prohibited by the provisions of 
this Chapter or any local or state law, statute, rule, or 
regulation and no significant nuisance issues or problems 
are likely or anticipated and that compliance with other 
applicable requirements of the City’s Zoning Ordinance will 
be accomplished.  

 
7. That the Dispensary’s Operations Plan, its site plan, 
its floor plan, the proposed hours of operation, and a 
security plan have incorporated features necessary to 
assist in reducing potential crime-related problems and as 
specified in the operating requirements section. These 
features may include, but are not limited to, security on-
site; procedure for allowing entry; openness to 
surveillance and control of the premises; the perimeter, 
and surrounding properties; reduction of opportunities for 
congregating and obstructing public ways and neighboring 



 12

property; illumination of exterior areas; and limiting 
furnishings and features that encourage loitering and 
nuisance behavior. 

 
8. That all reasonable measures have been incorporated into 
the Dispensary security plan or consistently taken to 
successfully control the establishment’s patrons’ conduct 
resulting in disturbances, vandalism, crowd control inside 
or outside the premises, traffic control problems, 
marijuana use in public, or creation of a public or private 
nuisance, or interference of the operation of another 
business. 

 
9. That the Storefront Collective Dispensary is likely to 
have no potentially adverse affect on the health, peace, or 
safety of persons living or working in the surrounding 
area, overly burden a specific neighborhood, or contribute 
to a public nuisance and that the Dispensary will generally 
not result in repeated nuisance activities including 
disturbances of the peace, illegal drug activity, marijuana 
use in public, harassment of passerby, excessive littering, 
excessive loitering, illegal parking, excessive loud 
noises, especially late at night or early in the morning 
hours, lewd conduct, or police detentions or arrests. 

 
10. That any provision of the Municipal Code or condition 
imposed by a City issued permit, or any provision of any 
other local, or state law, regulation, or order, or any 
condition imposed by permits issued in compliance with 
those laws will not be violated. 

 
11. That the Applicant has not made a false statement of 
material fact or has omitted to state a material fact in 
the application for a permit. 

 
12. That the Applicant has not engaged in unlawful, 
fraudulent, unfair, or deceptive business acts or practices 
with respect to the operation of another business within 
the City. 

 
Section 28.80.080 On-Going Management Requirements for Medical 

Marijuana Storefront Collective 
Dispensaries. 

 
Storefront Collective Dispensary operations shall be maintained 
and managed on a day-to-day basis only in compliance with the 
following operational standards and requirements:  
 



 13

A. Criminal History. A Storefront Collective Dispensary 
permittee, including all Management Members of that permittee, 
shall not have been convicted of a felony or be on probation or 
parole for the sale or distribution of a controlled substance 
and shall remain free of such a conviction or probation during 
the period of time in which the Storefront Collective Dispensary 
is being operated. 
 
B. Minors. It shall be unlawful for any Storefront Collective 
Dispensary permittee, a Management Member of the permittee, or 
any other person effectively in charge of any Storefront 
Collective Dispensary to employ any person who is not at least 
18 years of age. Persons under the age of eighteen (18) years 
shall not be allowed on the premises of a Medical Marijuana 
Collective Dispensary unless they are a qualified patient member 
of the Collective and they are accompanied by a parent or 
guardian at all times. The entrance to a Storefront Collective 
Dispensary shall be clearly and legibly posted with a notice 
indicating that persons under the age of eighteen (18) are 
precluded from entering the premises unless they are a qualified 
patient member of the Collective and they are in the presence of 
their parent or guardian. 
 
C. Storefront Collective Dispensary Size and Access. The 
following access restrictions shall apply to all Storefront 
Collective Dispensaries permitted by this Chapter: 
 

1.  A Storefront Collective Dispensary shall not be 
enlarged in size (i.e., increased floor area) without prior 
review and approval of the change from the Staff Hearing 
Officer and an approved amendment to the existing 
Storefront Collective Dispensary permit pursuant to the 
requirements of this Chapter. 

 
2. An expressly designated Management Member or Members 
shall be responsible for monitoring the Property of the 
Storefront Collective Dispensary for any nuisance activity 
(including the adjacent public sidewalk and rights-of-way) 
which may occur on the block within which the Storefront 
Collective Dispensary is operating. 

 
3. Only Collective members as primary caregivers or 
qualified patients shall be permitted within a Storefront 
Collective Dispensary building for the purposes of 
cultivating, processing, distributing, or obtaining medical 
marijuana. 

 



 14

4. A qualified patient or a primary caregiver shall not 
visit a Storefront Collective Dispensary without first 
having obtained a valid written recommendation from his or 
her licensed physician recommending the use of medical 
marijuana or, in the case of a primary caregiver, without 
first having been expressly designated a primary caregiver 
to a qualified patient as required by the Compassionate Use 
Act.  
 
5. A qualified patient or primary caregiver may not obtain 
medical marijuana upon their first in-person visit to a 
Storefront Collective Dispensary and, instead, may only 
become a member of the Collective at the first visit to a 
particular Dispensary. Upon joining the Collective, a  
registered member of a Collective may obtain medical 
marijuana as a qualified patient or primary caregiver only 
after an initial waiting period of 24 hours after their 
initial in-person visit to the Dispensary for the purposes 
of joining the Collective.  

 
6. Only a primary caregiver and qualified patient members 
of the Collective Dispensary shall be allowed within the 
designated marijuana dispensing area of a Storefront 
Collective Dispensary (as shown on the site plan required 
by the Application) along with only a necessary Management 
Members. 

 
7. Restrooms with the Storefront Collective Dispensary 
shall remain locked and under the control of Collective 
Dispensary Management Members at all times. 

 
D.  Medical Marijuana Dispensing Operations. The following 
medical marijuana distribution restrictions and conditions shall 
apply to all of the day-to-day medical marijuana dispensing 
operations which occur within a permitted Storefront Collective 
Dispensary: 
 

1. A Storefront Collective Dispensary shall only dispense 
to qualified patients or primary caregivers with a 
currently valid physicians approval or recommendation in 
compliance with the criteria of the Compassionate Use Act 
of 1996 and the SB 420 Statutes to those persons who are 
registered as active members of that Collective. Storefront 
Collectives Dispensaries shall require such persons to 
provide valid official identification, such as a Department 
of Motor Vehicles driver’s license or State Identification 
Card each time they seek to obtain medical marijuana. 

 



 15

2.  Prior to dispensing medical marijuana, a Management 
Member of the Storefront Collective Dispensary shall obtain 
a re-verification from the recommending physician’s office 
personnel that the individual requesting medical marijuana 
is or remains a qualified patient or a primary caregiver. 

 
3.  A Storefront Collective Dispensary shall not have a 
physician on-site to evaluate patients and provide a 
Compassionate Use Act recommendation for the use of medical 
marijuana. 
 
4. Every Storefront Collective Dispensary shall display at 
all times during its regular business hours, the permit 
issued pursuant to the provisions of this Chapter for such 
Collective Dispensary in a conspicuous place so that the 
same may be readily seen by all persons entering the 
Storefront Collective Dispensary. 

 
5. No Storefront Collective Dispensary shall hold or 
maintain a license from the State Division of Alcoholic 
Beverage Control for the sale of alcoholic beverages, or 
operate a business on the premises of the Dispensary that 
sells alcoholic beverages. No alcoholic beverages shall be 
allowed or consumed on the premises. 

 
6. Storefront Collective Dispensaries shall be considered 
commercial use relative to the parking requirements imposed 
by Santa Barbara Municipal Code Section 28.90.100(I). 

 
7. A notice shall be clearly and legibly posted in the 
Storefront Collective Dispensary indicating that smoking, 
ingesting or consuming marijuana on the premises or in the 
vicinity of the Dispensary is prohibited. Signs on the 
premises shall not obstruct the entrance or windows. 
Address identification shall comply with Fire Department 
illuminated address signs requirements. 

 
8. Business identification signage for Storefront 
Collective Dispensaries shall comply with the City’s Sign 
Ordinance (SBMC Chapter 22.70) and be limited to that 
needed for identification only, consisting of a single 
window sign or wall sign that shall not exceed six square 
feet in area or 10 percent of the window area, whichever is 
less.  
 

E. Dispensary Medical Marijuana On-Site Consumption and Re-
Distribution Restrictions. The following medical marijuana 



 16

consumption restrictions shall apply to all permitted Storefront 
Collective Dispensaries: 
 

1. Medical marijuana shall not be consumed by qualified 
patients on the Property or the premises of the Storefront 
Collective Dispensary. 

 
The term “premises” includes the actual building, as well 
as any accessory structures, parking lot or parking areas, 
or other surroundings within 200 feet of the Collective 
Dispensary’s entrance. Collective Dispensary management 
member employees who are qualified patients may consume 
marijuana within the enclosed building area of the 
premises, provided such consumption occurs only via oral 
consumption (i.e., eating only) but not by means of smoking 
or vaporization. 
 
2. Storefront Collective Dispensary operations shall not 
result in illegal re-distribution or sale of medical 
marijuana obtained from the Collective Dispensary, or the 
use or distribution in any manner which violates state law. 

 
F. Retail Sales of Other Items by a Storefront Collective 
Dispensary. The retail sales of related marijuana use items at a 
Storefront Collective Dispensary may be allowed only under the 
following circumstances: 
 

1.  With the approval of the Staff Hearing Officer, a 
Collective Dispensary may conduct or engage in the 
commercial sale of specific products, goods, or services 
(except drug paraphernalia) in addition to the provision of 
medical marijuana on terms and conditions consistent with 
this Chapter and applicable law. 

 
2. No Collective Dispensary shall sell or display for sale 
any drug paraphernalia or any implement that may be used to 
administer medical marijuana. 

 
 
G. Storefront Collective Dispensary – Compliance with the 
Compassionate Use Act of 1996 and SB 420 Statutes. 
 

1. State Law Compliance Warning. Each Collective Dispensary 
shall have a sign posted in a conspicuous location inside 
the Storefront Collective Dispensary advising the public of 
the following: 
 



 17

a. The diversion of marijuana for non-medical purposes 
is a criminal violation of state law. 
 
b. The use of marijuana may impair a person’s ability 
to drive a motor vehicle or operate heavy machinery. 
 
c. The sale of marijuana and the diversion of 
marijuana for non-medical purposes are violations of 
state law. 

 
2. Not For Profit Operation of the Storefront Collective 
Dispensary. No Medical Marijuana Storefront Collective 
Dispensary shall operate for profit. Cash and in-kind 
contributions, reimbursements, and reasonable compensation 
for services provided by Management Members and Collective 
members toward the Collective’s actual expenses for the 
growth, cultivation, processing, and provision of Medical 
Marijuana to qualified patients of the Collective shall be 
allowed provided that such reimbursements are in strict 
compliance with the applicable provisions of the SB 420 
Statutes. All such cash and in-kind reimbursement amounts 
and items shall be fully documented in the financial and 
accounting records of the Collective Dispensary in 
accordance with and as required by the recordkeeping 
requirements of this Chapter. 

 
3. Cultivation of Medical Marijuana by the Collective. The 
Collective cultivation of medical marijuana shall be 
limited to the Collective members and Management Members. 
Cultivation of medical marijuana by the Collective members 
and the Management Members shall occur exclusively within 
the boundaries of the counties of Santa Barbara, Ventura, 
or San Luis Obispo County and only at the real property 
identified for such cultivation on the approved Storefront 
Collective Dispensary Permit application. 
 
No cultivation of medical marijuana at any Property where 
the marijuana will be visible with the un-aided eye from 
any public or other private property, nor shall cultivated 
medical marijuana or dried medical marijuana be visible 
from the building exterior on the Property. No cultivation 
shall occur at the Property of the Collective unless the 
area devoted to the cultivation is secured from public 
access by means of a locked gate and any other security 
measures necessary to prevent unauthorized entry. 
 
4. Distribution of Medical Marijuana within Santa Barbara 
Only. Distribution of the medical marijuana collectively 



 18

cultivated by some Collective members to other Collective 
members shall occur exclusively within the boundaries of 
the city of Santa Barbara and only at the real property 
identified as the Dispensary location on the approved 
Storefront Collective Dispensary Permit application. 
 
5. Membership Limited to One Collective. Membership in a 
Collective which operates a Storefront Collective 
Dispensary within the City shall be limited to one 
Collective per qualified patient or primary caregiver. Each 
Collective shall also consist only of individuals residing 
with Santa Barbara, Ventura, or San Luis Obispo counties as 
the term “principal residence” is defined in the federal 
Internal Revenue Code.  

 
J. Maintenance of Appropriate Collective Records Regarding 
Cultivation and Compliance with the SB 420 Statutes.  
 

1. Cultivation Records. Every City permitted Storefront 
Collective Dispensary shall maintain, on-site at the 
Property designated for the operation of the Storefront 
Collective Dispensary cultivation records, signed under 
penalty of perjury by each Management Member responsible 
for the cultivation, identifying the location within the 
counties of Santa Barbara, Ventura, or San Luis Obispo at 
which the collective’s medical marijuana is being 
cultivated. Such records shall record the total number of 
marijuana plants cultivated or stored at each location. The 
Storefront Collective Dispensary shall also maintain an 
inventory record documenting the dates and amounts of 
medical marijuana cultivated or stored at the Dispensary 
Property, as well as the daily amounts of Medical Marijuana 
distributed from the Property for which the Dispensary 
permit is issued. 

 
2. Membership Records. Every Storefront Collective 
Dispensary shall maintain full and complete records of the 
full name, date of birth, residential address, and 
telephone number(s) of each Collective member and 
Management Member; the date each Collective member and 
Management Member joined the Collective; the exact nature 
of each Collective member’s and Management Member’s 
participation in the Collective; and the status of each 
member and Management Member as a Qualified Patient or 
Primary Caregiver. 
 
3. Financial Records. The Collective Dispensary shall also 
maintain a written accounting records of all cash and in-



 19

kind contributions, reimbursements, and reasonable 
compensation provided by the Management Members of the 
Collective, and all operational expenditures and costs 
incurred by the Storefront Collective Dispensary in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting practices and 
standards typically applicable to such records.  

 
4. Dispensary Record Retention Period. The records required 
above by subparagraphs (1),(2), and (3) of this subsection 
shall be maintained by the Medical Marijuana Collective 
Dispensary for a period of three (3) years and shall be 
made available by the Collective to the City upon a written 
request, subject to the authority set forth in Section 
28.90.080. 

 
Section 28.80.090 City Access to and Inspection of Required 

Storefront Collective Dispensary Records.  
 
A duly designated City Police Department or Community 
Development Department representative may enter and shall be 
allowed to inspect the premises of every Storefront Collective 
Dispensary as well as the financial and membership records of 
the Collective required by this Chapter between the hours of ten 
o’clock (10:00) A.M. and eight o’clock (8:00) P.M., or at any 
appropriate time to ensure compliance and enforcement of the 
provisions of this Chapter, except that the inspection and 
copying of the private medical records of a Collective member 
shall be made available to the Police Department only pursuant 
to a properly executed search warrant or inspection warrant by a 
court of competent jurisdiction, or a court order for the 
inspection of such records.   
 
It shall be unlawful for any property owner, landlord, lessee, 
Medical Marijuana Collective Dispensary member or Management 
Member or any other person having any responsibility over the 
operation of the Storefront Collective Dispensary to refuse to 
allow, impede, obstruct or  interfere with an inspection of the 
Storefront Collective Dispensary or the required records 
thereof. 
 
Section 28.80.100 Sale, Distribution, or Exchange of Medical 

Marijuana with a non-Medical Marijuana 
Collective Member.  

 
A. Transfers to or from a Non-Collective Member. A Storefront 
Collective Dispensary, including the Management Member operating 
the Dispensary, shall not cause or permit the sale, distribution, 
or exchange of Medical Marijuana or of any Edible Medical 



 20

Marijuana product to any non- Collective Management Member or 
member. No Storefront Collective Dispensary shall possess medical 
marijuana that was not collectively cultivated by its Management 
Members or members either at the Property designated for the 
cultivation or at its prior location allowed in accordance with 
this Chapter. 
 
B. Assistance for Edible Marijuana Products. Sales of edible 
medical marijuana products may be permitted at a Storefront 
Collective Dispensary and an individual or business within the 
City which assists a Dispensary in preparing and processing such a 
product will be deemed by the City as an “individual who provides 
assistance to a qualified patient or person with an identification 
card, or his or her designated primary caregiver, in administering 
medical marijuana to a qualified patient …” as that phrase is used 
in state Health and Safety Code section 11362.765(b)(3).  
 
 
Section 28.80.110 Appeal from Staff Hearing Officer 

Determination. 
 
A.  Appeal to the City Council. An applicant or any interested 
party who disagrees with the Staff Hearing Officer’s decision to 
issue, issue with conditions, or to deny or to revoke a 
Storefront Collective Dispensary permit may appeal such a 
decision to the City Council by filing an appeal pursuant to the 
requirements of section 1.30.050 of the Municipal Code.  
 
B. Notice of City Council Appeal Hearing. Upon the filing of an 
appeal pursuant to subparagraph (A) above, the Community 
Development Director or the City Clerk shall provide public 
notice of the appeal hearing in accordance with the notice 
provisions of SBMC Section 28.87.380. 
 
 
Section 28.80.120 Suspension and Revocation by Staff Hearing 

Officer. 
 
A. Authority to Suspend or Revoke a Storefront Collective 
Dispensary Permit. Consistent with Section 28.87.360, any 
Storefront Collective Dispensary permit issued under the terms 
of this Chapter may be suspended or revoked by the Staff Hearing 
Officer if it shall appear to that Officer that the Dispensary 
permittee has violated any of the requirements of this Chapter 
or the Dispensary is being operated in a manner which violates 
the operational requirements or operational plan required by 
this Chapter, or operated in a manner which conflicts with state 
law.  



 21

 
B. Annual Review of Collective Dispensary Operations. The staff 
of the Community Development Department and the Police 
Department are hereby authorized to conduct an annual review of 
the operation of each permitted Storefront Collective Dispensary 
within the City for full compliance with the operational 
requirements of this Chapter, including specifically annual 
verification that all persons employed or volunteering at the 
Storefront Collective Dispensary have not been convicted of or 
on probation for a crime related to the possession, sale, or 
distribution of controlled substances. A fee in an amount 
established by resolution of the City Council may be established 
in order to reimburse the City for the time involved in the 
annual review process. The staff may initiate a permit 
suspension or revocation process for any Storefront Collective 
Dispensary which is found not to be in compliance with the 
requirements of this Chapter or which is operating in a manner 
which constitutes a public nuisance.  
  
C. Suspension or Revocation – Written Notice. Except as 
otherwise provided in this Chapter, no permit shall be revoked 
or suspended by the Staff Hearing Officer under the authority of 
this Chapter until written notice of the intent to consider 
revocation or suspension of the permit has been served upon a 
Management Member or the person to whom the permit was granted 
at least ten (10) days prior to the date set for such review 
hearing. Such revocation or suspension notice shall state the 
specific reasons for the proposed suspension or revocation and 
must have been provided to the permittee in writing prior to the 
hearing. Such notice shall contain a brief statement of the 
grounds to be relied upon for revoking or suspending such 
permit. Notice may be given either by personal delivery to the 
permittee, or by depositing such notice in the U.S. mail in a 
sealed envelope, postage prepaid, (via regular mail and return 
receipt requested), addressed to the person to be notified at 
his or her address as it appears in his or her application for a 
Storefront Collective Dispensary permit. 
 
 
Section 28.80.130 Transfer of Collective Dispensary Permits. 
 
A. Permit – Site Specific. A permittee shall not operate a 
Storefront Collective Dispensary under the authority of a 
Storefront Collective Dispensary permit at any place other than 
the address of the Collective Dispensary stated in the 
application for the permit. All Collective Dispensary permits 
issued by the City pursuant to this chapter shall be non-
transferable to a different location.  



 22

 
B. Transfer of a Permitted Collective Dispensary. A permittee 
shall not transfer ownership or control of a Storefront 
Collective Dispensary or attempt to transfer a Collective 
Dispensary permit to another person unless and until the 
transferee obtains an amendment to the permit from the Staff 
Hearing Officer pursuant to the permitting requirements of this 
Chapter stating that the transferee is now the permittee. Such 
an amendment may be obtained only if the transferee files an 
application with the Community Development Department in 
accordance with this all provisions of this Chapter accompanied 
by the required transfer review application fee.  
 
C. Request for Transfer with a Revocation or Suspension Pending. 
No Storefront Collective Dispensary permit may be transferred 
(and no permission for a transfer may be issued) when the 
Community Development Department has notified in writing the 
permittee that the permit has been or may be suspended or 
revoked for non-compliance with this Chapter and a notice of 
such suspension or revocation has been provided. 
 
D. Transfer without Permission. Any attempt to transfer a 
Storefront Collective Dispensary permit either directly or 
indirectly in violation of this Chapter is declared void, and 
the permit shall be deemed revoked. 
 
Section 28.80.140 Medical Marijuana Vending Machines. 
 
No person shall maintain, use, or operate a vending machine 
which dispenses marijuana to a qualified patient or primary 
caregiver unless such machine is located within the interior of 
a duly permitted Collective Dispensary.  
 
Section 28.80.150 Business License Tax Liability. 
 
An operator of a Storefront Collective Dispensary shall be 
required to apply for and obtain a Business Tax Certificate 
pursuant to Chapter 5.04. as a prerequisite to obtaining a 
Storefront Collective Dispensary permit pursuant to the terms of 
this Chapter. When and as required by the State Board of 
Equalization, Storefront Collective Dispensary transactions 
shall be subject to sales tax in a manner required by state law. 
 
 
SECTION TWO.  
 
A. Dispensaries Permitted under the March 2008 Ordinance. Those 
Dispensaries which were authorized and permitted pursuant to the 



 23

Santa Barbara Municipal Code Chapter 28.80 (as adopted on March 
25, 2008 as City Ordinance No. 5449) shall be deemed pre-
existing legal non-conforming uses of the real property 
locations upon which they are situated provided that, upon the 
effective date of this Ordinance, such dispensaries operate in 
accordance with all Collective Dispensary operational provisions 
added to Santa Barbara Municipal Code Chapter 28.80 by this 
Ordinance.  
 
B. Dispensaries Which Have Operated Legally Prior to and Since 
the Effective Date of Ordinance No. 5449. Those dispensaries 
which opened and operated in a legal manner prior to the 
effective date of City Ordinance No. 5449 and which have 
remained in a legal nonconforming manner of operation since that 
time, may, despite a non-conforming location, remain as a legal 
non-conforming use for a period of one hundred eighty (180) days 
from the effective date of this Ordinance, provided that such a 
dispensary or Collective Dispensary implements and fully 
observes the following operational conditions of this Ordinance 
prior to the effective date of this Ordinance:  
 

1. the operation of the dispensary or Collective Dispensary 
is not discontinued for a period of time in excess of 
thirty (30) consecutive days;   
 
2. the day-to-day operation of the dispensary or Collective 
Dispensary complies with all operational requirements of 
Chapter 28.80, as revised and enacted by this Ordinance, 
and;  
 
3. the dispensary or Collective Dispensary is subject to 
the requirements for non-conforming uses of SBMC section 
28.87.030 until such time that it has been discontinued or 
permitted at a new allowed location pursuant to this 
Ordinance.  

 
SECTION THREE. City Ordinance No. 5510 entitled “An Ordinance Of 
The Council Of The City Of Santa Barbara Extending A Temporary 
Suspension Of The Right To Apply For Or To Obtain A Permit For 
The Opening Or Operation Of Medical Marijuana Dispensaries 
Otherwise Permitted By Santa Barbara Municipal Code Chapter 
28.80 On An Interim Basis” adopted on February 2, 2010 is hereby 
repealed as of the effective date of this Ordinance. 
 
 
 
swiley\ord\Medical.Marijuana.Disp – INTRODUCTION DRAFT  
May 12, 2010; 5:53 
 



 24

EXHIBIT A TO ORDINANCE NO. ____ 
MEDICAL MARIJUANA DISPENSARIES 

SANTA BARBARA MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 28.80 
ALLOWED LOCATION EXHIBIT  

DATED AS OF MAY 18, 2010  
 
1. Outer State Street Area: 
 

a. 3400 - 3900 blocks of State Street 
b. All parcels on south La Cumbre Road 
c. All parcels on south La Cumbre Lane 
d. All parcels on La Cumbre Plaza Lane 
e. 00-100 blocks of south Hope Avenue 
 

2. Upper De la Vina Area: 
 

a. 2600 – 2900 blocks of De la Vina Street 
 
3. Mission Street Area: 
 

a. 1900-2000 blocks of De la Vina Street 
b. 100 block of west Mission Street 
c. 1800 block of State Street 
d. 1400 block of Chapala Street 
 

4. Downtown West Area: 
 

a. 600-700 blocks of Chapala 
b. 300-400 blocks of west Carrillo 
c. 100 blocks of west De la Guerra 
d. 00-100 blocks of west Ortega 
 

5. Downtown East Area: 
 

a. 900 block of Laguna Street 
b. 400 block of east Cota 
c. 300 block of east Carrillo 
 

6. Milpas Street: 
 
a. 00–400 blocks of north Milpas Street 
 

7. West Pueblo Medical Facility Area: 
 

a. 200 block of Nogales 
b. 200-400 blocks of west Pueblo 
c. 2400-2500 blocks of Bath 



 25

d. 2300 block of Castillo 
e. 300 block of West Junipero 

 


	1.DOC (5 pages)
	2.DOC (8 pages)
	3.DOC (3 pages)
	4.DOC (5 pages)
	5.DOC (2 pages)
	6.DOC (2 pages)
	7.DOC (1 page)
	8.DOC (2 pages)
	9.DOC (2 pages)
	10.DOC (2 pages)
	11.DOC (6 pages)
	12.DOC (2 pages)
	13.DOC (4 pages)
	14.PDF (1 page)
	15.DOC (1 page)
	16.DOC (1 page)
	17.DOC (3 pages)
	18.PDF (1 page)
	19.PDF (1 page)
	20.PDF (1 page)
	21.PDF (1 page)
	22.PDF (1 page)
	23.PDF (1 page)
	24.DOC (7 pages)
	25.PDF (5 pages)
	26.PDF (6 pages)
	27.PDF (4 pages)
	28.PDF (3 pages)
	29.PDF (1 page)
	30.PDF (12 pages)
	31.DOC (5 pages)
	32.PDF (1 page)
	33.PDF (1 page)
	34.PDF (1 page)
	35.PDF (1 page)
	36.PDF (1 page)
	37.PDF (1 page)
	38.DOC (2 pages)
	39.DOC (25 pages)



